
















 
 

DATE:  August 28, 2014 

 

TO: Mayor and Council   

 

FROM: Mayor Jesus Ruiz  

 

SUBJECT: Presentation by Ghostlight Creative  

 

SUMMARY 

 

 

Presentation by Ghostlight Creative regarding the opening of a Corn Maza. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

 

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE 

 

Representatives from Ghostlight Creative will be making a presentation of the new corn 

maze opening. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 

Account Code (GF/GL/Dept):   

 

Funding Source:  

 

Amount:   

      

Quotes (Name/Commodity/Price) 

 

Co-op Agreement (Name/Contract#) 

 

 

ALTERNATIVE 

 

 

 

Jesus Ruiz 
Mayor 

 

Rene Rodriguez 
At Large 

 

Sergio Cox 
District 1 

 

Gloria M. Rodríguez 
District 2 

 

Victor Perez  
District 3 – Mayor Pro Tem 

 

Joseph E. Bowling 
District 4 

 

Willie Norfleet, Jr.  
City Manager 

 

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 5



 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

 

 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATION 

 

1. City Manager  ___________________ Date_________________ 

 

2. CFO  ____  Date: ________________ 

 

3. Attorney ________________________ Date _______________________ 



 
 

DATE:  August 28, 2014 

 

TO: Mayor and Council   

 

FROM: Gloria M. Rodriguez, District 2 Representative 

 

SUBJECT: Presentation Lori Diaz 

 

SUMMARY 

 

 

Presentation by Lori Diaz, Socorro Middle School Principal, regarding OLWEUS 

Anti-Bullying Kickoff Event. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

 

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE 

 

Ms. Diaz will be making a presentation regarding Anti-Bullying Kickoff. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 

Account Code (GF/GL/Dept):   

 

Funding Source:  

 

Amount:   

      

Quotes (Name/Commodity/Price) 

 

Co-op Agreement (Name/Contract#) 

 

 

ALTERNATIVE 

 

 

 

Jesus Ruiz 
Mayor 

 

Rene Rodriguez 
At Large 

 

Sergio Cox 
District 1 

 

Gloria M. Rodríguez 
District 2 

 

Victor Perez  
District 3 – Mayor Pro Tem 

 

Joseph E. Bowling 
District 4 

 

Willie Norfleet, Jr.  
City Manager 

 

City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 6



 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

 

 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATION 

 

1. City Manager  ___________________ Date_________________ 

 

2. CFO  ____  Date: ________________ 

 

3. Attorney ________________________ Date _______________________ 



 
 

DATE: 08/25 

TO: Council 

 

FROM: Mayor Jesus Ruiz 

 

SUBJECT: August Monthly Report  

 

 

SUMMARY 

 

A monthly report on the overall status of the city is being requested by CM Willie 

Norfleet. In order for Council to be up to date on what is happening in the City, this 

monthly report is being requested.     

 

 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

n/a 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE 

 

See above 

 

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 

None 

 

 

 

ALTERNATIVE 

 

none 

Jesus Ruiz 
Mayor 

 

Rene Rodriguez 
At Large 

 

Sergio Cox 
District 1 

 

Gloria M. Rodríguez 
District 2 

 

Victor Perez  
District 3 – Mayor Pro Tem 

 

Joseph E. Bowling 
District 4 

 

Willie Norfleet, Jr.  
City Manager 

 

City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 7

City Manager
Typewritten Text



 

 

COUNCIL MEMBER RECOMMENDATION 

 

Allow CM Willie Norfleet to provide us with a monthly report  

 























































Notice of Public Hearing on Tax Increase 

The City of Socorro will hold two public hearings on a proposal to increase 

total tax revenues from properties on the tax roll in the preceding tax year by 

17.66 percent (percentage by which proposed tax rate exceeds lower of 

rollback tax rate or effective tax calculated under Chapter 26, Tax Code). 

Your individual taxes may increase at a greater or lesser rate, or even 

decrease, depending on the change in the taxable value of your property in 

relation to the change in taxable value of all other property and the tax rate 

that is adopted. 

The first public hearing will be held on August 21, 2014 at 6 p.m. at Socorro 

City Hall, 860 N. Rio Vista Rd., Socorro, TX 79927. 

The second public hearing will be held on September 4, 2014 6 p.m. at 

Socorro City Hall, 860 N. Rio Vista Rd., Socorro, TX 79927. 

The members of the governing body voted on the proposal to consider the 

tax increase as follows: 

FOR:    Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling
    Sergio Cox, Gloria M. Rodriguez  
 
AGAINST:  None   
 
PRESENT and not voting: None 
 
ABSENT: None   

The average taxable value of a residence homestead in CITY OF 

SOCORRO last year was $80,753. Based on last year’s tax rate of 

$0.577847 per $100 of taxable value, the amount of taxes imposed last year 

on the average home was $466.63. 

The average taxable value of a residence homestead in City of SOCORRO 

this year is $81,554. If the governing body adopts the effective tax rate for 

this year of $0.585212 per $100 of taxable value, the amount of taxes 

imposed this year on the average home would be $477.26. 

If the governing body adopts the proposed tax rate of $0.688558 per $100 of 

taxable value, the amount of taxes imposed this year on the average home 

would be $561.55. 

Members of the public are encouraged to attend the hearings and express 

their views. 

City Manager
Typewritten Text
Items 8-9



2014 Property Tax Rates in CITY OF SOCORRO
This notice concerns the 2014 property tax rates for CITY OF SOCORRO. It presents 
information about three tax rates. Last year's tax rate is the actual tax rate the taxing unit used 
to determine property taxes last year. This year's effective tax rate would impose the same total 
taxes as last year if you compare properties taxed in both years. This year's rollback tax rate is 
the highest tax rate the taxing unit can set before taxpayers start rollback procedures. In each 
case these rates are found by dividing the total amount of taxes by the tax base (the total value 
of taxable property) with adjustments as required by state law. The rates are given per $100 of 
property value. 

Last year's tax rate:

    Last year's operating taxes $3,908,998

    Last year's debt taxes $1,194,153

    Last year's total taxes $5,103,151

    Last year's tax base $883,131,867

    Last year's total tax rate $0.577847/$100
This year's effective tax rate:

    Last year's adjusted taxes
    (after subtracting taxes on lost property)

$5,098,551

   ÷ This year's adjusted tax base
    (after subtracting value of new property)

$871,230,601

   =This year's effective tax rate $0.585212/$100
(Maximum rate unless unit publishes notices and holds hearings.)
This year's rollback tax rate:

    Last year's adjusted operating taxes
    (after subtracting taxes on lost property and adjusting for any 
transferred function, tax increment financing, state criminal justice 
mandate, and/or enhanced indigent healthcare expenditures)

$3,905,474

   ÷ This year's adjusted tax base $871,230,601

   =This year's effective operating rate $0.448271/$100

    x 1.08=this year's maximum operating rate $0.484132/$100

    + This year's debt rate $0.204426/$100

    = This year's total rollback rate $0.688558/$100

Statement of Increase/Decrease
If CITY OF SOCORRO adopts a 2014 tax rate equal to the effective tax rate of $0.585212 per 
$100 of value, taxes would increase compared to 2013 taxes by $98,486. 

Schedule A - Unencumbered Fund Balance
The following estimated balances will be left in the unit's property tax accounts at the end of 
the fiscal year. These balances are not encumbered by a corresponding debt obligation. 
Type of Property Tax Fund Balance

Maintenance and Operations Fund 2,539,839 

Schedule B - 2014 Debt Service
The unit plans to pay the following amounts for long-term debts that are secured by property 
taxes. These amounts will be paid from property tax revenues (or additional sales tax revenues, 
if applicable). 

Description of Debt
Principal or Contract 
Payment to be Paid 
from Property Taxes

Interest to be 
Paid from 
Property Taxes

Other Amounts 
to be Paid

Total Payment

Certificate of Obligation - 

Series 2008 
170,000 183,598 0 353,598 

Certificate of Obligation - 

Series 2010 
135,000 103,575 0 238,575 

Certificate of Obligation - 

Refunding - Series 2010 
185,000 42,975 0 227,975 

Certificate of Obligation - 

Series 2011 
20,000 89,700 0 109,700 

Certificate of Obligation - 

Series 2012 
115,000 147,800 0 262,800 

Certificate of Obligation - 

Series 2014 
215,000 409,388 0 624,388 

  Total required for 2014 debt service $1,817,036

- Amount (if any) paid from Schedule A $0

- Amount (if any) paid from other resources $0

- Excess collections last year $0



= Total to be paid from taxes in 2014 $1,817,036

+ Amount added in anticipation that the unit will 
collect only 100.00% of its taxes in 2014

$0 

= Total debt levy $1,817,036

This notice contains a summary of actual effective and rollback tax rates' calculations. You can 
inspect a copy of the full calculations at the City of El Paso Tax Office located at 221 N. 
Kansas, Suite 300.
          Name of person preparing this notice: Maria O. Ramos, RTA
          Title: Tax Deputy Administrator
          Date Prepared: 08/05/2014 





 
 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

AUGUST 21, 2014 at 6:00 P.M. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: 

Mayor Jesus Ruiz 

Victor Perez     

Joseph E. Bowling 

Sergio Cox 

Gloria M. Rodriguez 

 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 

Rene Rodriguez    

 
 

STAFF PRESENT: 

Willie Norfleet, Jr. 

Sandra Hernandez, City Clerk 

Jim Martinez, City Attorney 

Sam Leony, Planning and Zoning Director 

Adriana Rodarte, HR Director 

Victor Reta, Recreation Centers Supervisor 

Douglas Lobdell, Public Works Director 

Karina Hagelsieb, CFO 

Anibal Olague, Grants Department 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m.  

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND A MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 

Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Jesus Ruiz 

 

3. ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 

 

A roll call was held and a quorum was established with five members present. 

 

 

 

 

 

Jesus Ruiz 
Mayor 

 

Rene Rodriguez  
At Large 

 

Sergio Cox 
District 1 

 

Gloria M. Rodríguez 
District 2  

 

Victor Perez 
District 3 / Mayor-Pro Tem 

 

Joseph E. Bowling 
District 4 

 

Willie Norfleet, Jr.  
City Manager 

 

City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 11



City of Socorro 

Regular Council Meeting 
August 21, 2014 @ 6:00 p.m. 

 Page 2 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT  

 

Cathe Apodaca, signed up to speak but declined, Sergio Jaime and Ivan Puentes 

spoke during Public Comment 
 

PRESENTATIONS 

 

5. PRESENTATION BY MARY KOZAK FROM 911 DISTRICT REGARDING 

911 DISTRICT BUDGET.                                               WILLIE NORFLEET, JR. 

 

Mary Kozak spoke on this item. 

 

Rene Rodriguez arrived to the meeting at 6:09 p.m. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 

6. FIRST PUBLIC HEARING ON CITY OF SOCORRO’S PROPERTY TAX 

RATE AND PRESENTATION BY CITY MANAGER/CHIEF FINANCIAL 

OFFICER REGARDING THE TAX RATE CALCULATIONS AND 

REVENUE.                                                                         WILLIE NORFLEET, JR. 

 
Public Hearing Opened at 6:15 p.m. 

 

Ruth Gallegos, Sergio Jaime, Santiago Arana and Luis Sigala spoke during public 

hearing. 

 

Public Hearing Closed at 6:24 p.m. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

7. PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION REGARDING TAX RATE 

CALCULATIONS, REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES FOR THE CITY OF 

SOCORRO’S PROPOSED BDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015. 

                                                                                             WILLIE NORFLEET, JR. 

 

No action on this item. 

 

8. EXCUSE ABSENT COUNCIL MEMBERS.                   SANDRA HERNANDEZ 

 

9. APPROVAL OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES OF AUGUST 7, 

2014 AND SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES OF JULY 31, 2014 

AND AUGUST 3, 2014.                                                       SANDRA HERNANDEZ 

 

12. APPROVAL OF THE UNAUDITED EXPENDITURE AND REVENUE 

FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JULY 31, 2014.  

                                                       WILLIE NORFLEET, JR. 

 

 



City of Socorro 

Regular Council Meeting 
August 21, 2014 @ 6:00 p.m. 

 Page 3 

13. APPROVAL TO AWARD INFORMAL BID SOLICITATION FOR THE 

PURCHASE OF SECURITY CAMERA SYSTEM FOR BULLDOG 

CHAMPIONSHIP PARK AND PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT TO TIGUA 

INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $12,959.20.       OMAR GUEVARA 

 

 

A motion was made by Rene Rodriguez seconded by Joseph E. Bowling to approve 

with the exception of item number ten (10). 

 

Joseph E. Bowling rescinded his motion. 

 

No second motion dies. 

 

A motion was made by Sergio Cox seconded by Joseph E. Bowling to pull out items 

number ten (10) and eleven (11) from the Consent Agenda and into the Regular 

Agenda.  Motion passed. 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   

 

A motion was made by Victor Perez seconded by Rene Rodriguez to approve items 

eight (8), nine (9), twelve (12), and thirteen (13).  Motion passed. 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   

REGULAR AGENDA 

 

10. APPROVAL OF TRAVEL FOR MAYOR JESUS RUIZ, AT-LARGE 

REPRESENTATIVE RENE RODRIGUEZ AND WILLIE NORFLEET, JR. TO 

ATTEND THE TEXAS MUNICIPAL LEAGUE ANNUAL CONFERENCE IN 

HOUSTON, TEXAS SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 – OCTOBER 3, 2014.  

                                                                                                   MAYOR JESUS RUIZ 

 

A motion was made by Rene Rodriguez seconded by Gloria M. Rodriguez to approve 

the travel for council, any department heads and any staff member that would like to 

attend. 

 

Rene Rodriguez rescinded his motion. 

 

A motion was made by Rene Rodriguez seconded by Victor Perez to approve the 

travel  for At-Large Representative Rene Rodriguez and Willie Norfleet, Jr. Motion 

passed. 

 



City of Socorro 

Regular Council Meeting 
August 21, 2014 @ 6:00 p.m. 

 Page 4 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   

 

11. APPROVAL OF TRAVEL FOR MAYOR JESUS RUIZ, AT-LARGE 

REPRESENTATIVE RENE RODRIGUEZ AND WILLIE NORFLEET, JR. TO 

PECOS CITY ON AUGUST 8, 2014 FOR A TEXAS MUNICIPAL LEAGUE 

REGION IV MEETING.          WILLIE NORFLEET, JR. 

 

A motion was made by Rene Rodriguez seconded by Gloria M. Rodriguez to approve 

item number eleven (11).  Motion passed. 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling,  and Gloria M. Rodriguez 

Nays:   Sergio Cox 

Abstain:   

 

A motion was made by Victor Perez seconded by Rene Rodriguez to move up item 

item number twenty-two (22).  Motion passed. 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   

 

22. DISCUSSION AND ACTION TO APPROVE THE SUPPLEMENTAL 

AGREEMENT TO THE MAIN CONTRACT FOR DANNENBAUM 

ENGINEERING COMPANY WHICH INCLUDES A TIME EXTENSION, 

ADDITIONAL SCOPE AND FEES FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE 

SOCORRO BRIDGE.                                                      WILLIE NORFLEET, JR.  

 

A motion was made by Victor Perez seconded by Rene Rodriguez to approve item 

number twenty-two (22).  Motion passed. 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   

 

A motion was made by Sergio Cox seconded by Rene Rodriguez to combine items 

thirty-five (35) and twenty-three (23).   

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   

 



City of Socorro 

Regular Council Meeting 
August 21, 2014 @ 6:00 p.m. 

 Page 5 

23. DISCUSSION AND ACTION REGARDING THE CITY’S SPONSORSHIP 

AND FUNDING OF THE CHILI WAR FESTIVAL.                    VICTOR RETA 

 

35. DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE OLD HUECO TANKS ROAD ROADWAY 

PROJECT, FUNDING MECHANISMS FOR SAME AND PARTICIPATION 

BY OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES, INCLUDING THE CAMINO 

REAL REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY, THE STATE OF TEXAS,  EL 

PASO COUNTY, EL PASO COMMUNITY COLLEGE, THE EL PASO 

COUNTY WATER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AND THE LOWER 

VALLEY WATER DISTRICT.           JAMES A. MARTINEZ 

 

A motion was made by Rene Rodriguez seconded by Joseph E. Bowling to have the 

city attorney draw up a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), with stipulations 

discussed by city council.  Motion passed. 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   

 

A motion was made by Sergio Cox seconded by Gloria M. Rodriguez to take a recess 

of (5) minutes.  Motion passed. 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   

 

THE CITY COUNCIL CONVENED INTO A RECESS AT 7:50 P.M. 

 

RECESS 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL RECONVENED BACK IN OPEN SESSION AT 7:55 

P.M. 

 

ORDINANCES 

 

14. PUBLIC HEARING ORDINANCE 320, AMENDMENT NO. 4, AN 

ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 320, AMENDMENT NO. 3, OF THE 

CITY OF SOCORRO, AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES 

AND RULES FOR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS AND AGENDAS AS 

PROVIDED BY SECTION 3.08 OF THE SOCORRO CITY CHARTER, AND 

ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES AND RULES FOR CONDUCT OF THE 

SOCORRO CITY COUNCIL AND ALL OF THE CITY OF SOCORRO 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS AND REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 304 AS 

AMENDED AND ORDINANCE 280 AS AMENDED.   RENE RODRIGUEZ 

 



City of Socorro 

Regular Council Meeting 
August 21, 2014 @ 6:00 p.m. 

 Page 6 

Public Hearing Opened at 7:56 p.m. 

No Speakers 

Public Hearing Closed at 7:57 p.m. 

 

15. SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 320, AMENDMENT 

NO. 4, AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 320, AMENDMENT NO. 

3, OF THE CITY OF SOCORRO, AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING 

PROCEDURES AND RULES FOR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS AND 

AGENDAS AS PROVIDED BY SECTION 3.08 OF THE SOCORRO CITY 

CHARTER, AND ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES AND RULES FOR 

CONDUCT OF THE SOCORRO CITY COUNCIL AND ALL OF THE CITY 

OF SOCORRO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS AND REPEALING 

ORDINANCE NO. 304 AS AMENDED AND ORDINANCE 280 AS AMENDED.

                     RENE RODRIGUEZ 

 

A motion was made by Victor Perez seconded by Rene Rodriguez to approve item 

number fifteen (15).  Motion passed. 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   

 

16. PUBLIC HEARING OF ORDINANCE 343, AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY 

OF SOCORRO, TEXAS, PROHIBITING THE USE OF WIRELESS 

COMMUNICATIONS DEVICES WHILE OPERATING A MOTOR 

VEHICLE AND CREATING AND OFFENSE.    GLORIA M. RODRIGUEZ 

 

Public Hearing Opened at 7:58 p.m. 

No Speakers 

Public Hearing Closed at 7:58 p.m. 

 

17. SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 343, AN 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SOCORRO, TEXAS, PROHIBITING THE 

USE OF WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS DEVICES WHILE OPERATING 

A MOTOR VEHICLE AND CREATING AND OFFENSE.  

                                                                                GLORIA M. RODRIGUEZ 

 

A motion was made by Gloria M. Rodriguez seconded by Rene Rodriguez to approve 

item number seventeen (17).  Motion passed. 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   

 



City of Socorro 

Regular Council Meeting 
August 21, 2014 @ 6:00 p.m. 

 Page 7 

18. INTRODUCTION, FIRST READING AND CALLING FOR A PUBLIC 

HEARING OF ORDINANCE 322, AMENDMENT NO. 3, AN ORDINANCE OF 

THE CITY OF SOCORRO, TEXAS, ADOPTING AN AMENDED BUDGET 

TO DECREASE FY-2014 ADOPTED BUDGET.               KARINA HAGELSIEB 

 

      A motion was made by Gloria M. Rodriguez seconded by Rene Rodriguez to approve  

      item number eighteen (18).  Motion passed. 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   

 

19. INTRODUCTION, FIRST READING AND CALLING FOR A PUBLIC 

HEARING OF ORDINANCE 344, AN ORDINANCE CHANGING THE 

ZONING OF TRACT 29-F, BLOCK 8, SOCORRO GRANT, FROM A-1 

(AGRICULTURAL) TO C-2 (GENERAL COMMERCIAL). SAM LEONY 

 

A motion was made by Rene Rodriguez seconded by Gloria M. Rodriguez to approve 

item number nineteen (19).  Motion passed. 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   

 

CITY MANAGER 

 

20. DISCUSSION AND ACTION  TO ANNOUNCE THE DATE ON WHICH CITY 

COUNCIL WILL TAKE FINAL ACTION ON THE TAX RATE AND ON THE 

MUNICIPAL BUDGET.                                                   WILLIE NORFLEET, JR. 

 

A motion was made by Gloria M. Rodriguez seconded by Rene Rodriguez to approve 

item number twenty (20).  Motion passed. 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   

 

CITY MANAGER 

 

21. DISCUSSION AND ACTION TO ANNOUNCE THE DATE ON WHICH CITY 

COUNCIL WILL TAKE FINAL ACTION ON THE TAX RATE AND ON THE 

MUNICIPAL BUDGET.                                                   WILLIE NORFLEET, JR. 

 



City of Socorro 

Regular Council Meeting 
August 21, 2014 @ 6:00 p.m. 

 Page 8 

 (Mr. Martinez stated that a date should be announced and Mr. Norfleet announced 

the date would be September 11, 2014.) to which Gloria M. Rodriguez motioned to 

approve seconded by Rene Rodriguez. Motion passed. 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   

 

24.  DISCUSSION AND ACTION APPROVING RESOLUTION 478, A 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SOCORRO, 

TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A TRANSPORTATION 

ALTERNATIVE PROGRAM, SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOLS APPLICATION 

TO THE EL PASO METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION IN 

THE AMOUNT OF $500,000 AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ACT 

AS THE CITY’S EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND AUTHORIZED 

REPRESENTATIVE IN ALL MATTERS PERTAINING TO THE CITY’S 

PARTICIPATION IN THE PROGRAM.     ANIBAL OLAGUE 

 

A motion was made by Victor Perez seconded by Rene Rodriguez to approve item 

number twenty-four (24).  Motion passed. 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   

 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

 

25. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ON THE CERTIFICATE OF 

APPROPRIATENESS FOR THE PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL PROJECT 

FOR LA PURISIMA SOCORRO MISSION LOCATED AT 328 S. NEVAREZ 

ROAD.  THE HISTORICAL LANDMARK COMMISSION RECOMMENDS 

APPROVAL.                                                                           SAM LEONY 

 

A motion was made by Gloria M. Rodriguez seconded by Rene Rodriguez to 

approve item number twenty-five (25).  Motion passed. 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   

 

 

 

 



City of Socorro 

Regular Council Meeting 
August 21, 2014 @ 6:00 p.m. 

 Page 9 

26. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ON THE CERTIFICATE OF 

APPROPRIATENESS FOR THE PROPOSED AFFORDABLE HOUSING 

DEVELOPMENT TO BE LOCATED AT TRACT 1-E, BLOCK 26, 

SOCORRO GRANT (NO ADDRESS AVAILABLE). THE HISTORICAL 

LANDMARK COMMISSION RECOMMENDS APPROVAL.  

          SAM LEONY 

 

       A motion was made by Gloria M. Rodriguez seconded by Rene Rodriguez to      

       approve item number twenty-six (26).  Motion passed. 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   

 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

 

27. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ON DIRECTING STAFF TO CREATE AN 

ORDINANCE THAT WOULD REQUIRE NEW BUSINESSES TO 

LANDSCAPE 10% OF THE PROPERTY.  MAYOR JESUS RUIZ 

 

A motion was made by Gloria M. Rodriguez seconded by Rene Rodriguez to  

approve item number twenty-seven (27).   

 

Gloria M. Rodriguez rescinded her motion. 

 

A motion was made by Gloria M. Rodriguez seconded by Rene Rodriguez to delete 

item number twenty-seven (27).  Motion passed. 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   

 

28. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ON UPDATE FROM CITY MANAGER, 

WILLIE M. NORFLEET, JR., REGARDING SCHOOL FAIR FOR 

EMPLOYEES.                                     MAYOR JESUS RUIZ 

 

No action on this item. 

 

A motion was made by Gloria M. Rodriguez seconded by Rene Rodriguez to move 

items twenty-nine (29), thirty (30) and thirty-one (31).  Motion passed. 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   



City of Socorro 

Regular Council Meeting 
August 21, 2014 @ 6:00 p.m. 

 Page 10 

 

32. DISCUSSION AND ACTION  REGARDING FRAY HOLGUIN ROAD. 

                                                                                                      RENE RODRIGUEZ 

 

A motion was made by Rene Rodriguez seconded by Gloria M. Rodriguez to move 

funding for Lower Valley Water District. 

 

Rene Rodriguez rescinded his motion. 

 

A motion was made by Sergio Cox seconded by Gloria M. Rodriguez to move into 

Executive Session.  Motion passed. 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   

 

33. DISCUSSION AND ACTION REGARDING TIRES.  RENE RODRIGUEZ 

 

34. DISCUSSION AND ACTION REGARDING STOP SIGNS. RENE RODRIGUEZ 

 

A motion was made by Rene Rodriguez seconded by Victor Perez to delete items 

thirty-three (33) and thirty-four (34).  Motion passed. 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   

 

CITY ATTORNEY 

 

36. DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE OLD HUECO TANKS ROAD ROADWAY 

PROJECT, FUNDING MECHANISMS FOR SAME AND PARTICIPATION 

BY OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES, INCLUDING THE CAMINO 

REAL REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY, THE STATE OF TEXAS,  EL 

PASO COUNTY, EL PASO COMMUNITY COLLEGE, THE EL PASO 

COUNTY WATER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AND THE LOWER 

VALLEY WATER DISTRICT.          JAMES A. MARTINEZ 

 

A motion was made by Gloria M. Rodriguez seconded by Victor Perez to move item 

number thirty six (36) into Executive Session.  Motion passed. 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   

 



City of Socorro 

Regular Council Meeting 
August 21, 2014 @ 6:00 p.m. 

 Page 11 

 

A motion was made by Gloria M. Rodriguez seconded by Victor Perez to move into 

Executive Session.  Motion passed. 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   

 

THE CITY COUNCIL CONVENED INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION AT 8:34 

P.M. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL RECONVENED BACK IN OPEN SESSION AT 10:06 

P.M. 

 

29. DISCUSSION AND ACTION TO DEFUND ASSISTANT CITY CLERK 

POSITION AND HUMAN RESOURCES ASSISTANT POSITION. 

                                                                                                     RENE RODRIGUEZ 

                                                                                                   

30. DISCUSSION AND ACTION REGARDING GRANT WRITER POSITION. 

                                                                                                 RENE RODRIGUEZ 

 

31. DISCUSSION AND ACTION TO COMBINE PARKS DEPARTMENT WITH 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT.    RENE RODRIGUEZ 

 

32. DISCUSSION AND ACTION REGARDING FRAY HOLGUIN ROAD. 

                                                                                               RENE  RODRIGUEZ 

 

36. DISCUSSION AND ACTION RE OLD HUECO TANKS ROAD ROADWAY 

PROJECT, FUNDING MECHANISMS FOR SAME AND PARTICIPATION 

BY OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES, INCLUDING THE CAMINO 

REAL REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY, THE STATE OF TEXAS,  EL 

PASO COUNTY, EL PASO COMMUNITY COLLEGE, THE EL PASO 

COUNTY WATER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AND THE LOWER 

VALLEY WATER DISTRICT.          JAMES A. MARTINEZ 

 

41. CONSULTATION WITH LEGAL COUNSEL CONCERNING LEGAL ISSUES 

RELATING TO BOBBY D. CORREA V. THE CITY OF SOCORRO; SOAH 

DOCKET NO. 407-13-5911.F5.                                             JAMES A. MARTINEZ 

 

42. CONSULTATION WITH LEGAL COUNSEL CONCERNING LEGAL ISSUES 

RELATING TO REFUGIO ORTA V. THE CITY OF SOCORRO; SOAH 

DOCKET NO. 407-13-5909.F5 JAMES A. MARTINEZ 

 



City of Socorro 

Regular Council Meeting 
August 21, 2014 @ 6:00 p.m. 

 Page 12 

43. CONSULTATION WITH LEGAL COUNSEL CONCERNING LEGAL ISSUES 

RELATING TO JAVIER VARELA V. SOCORRO POLICE DEPARTMENT; 

SOAH DOCKET NO. 407-13-5925.F5                                   JAMES A. MARTINEZ 

 

A motion was made by Gloria M. Rodriguez seconded by Rene Rodriguez to 

postpone for the Regular Meeting of September 4, 2014 meeting items twenty-nine 

(29),  thirty (30), thirty-one (31), thirty-two (32), thirty-six (36), forty-one (41), forty-

two (42), and forty-three (43) 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   

 

40. DISCUSSION AND ACTION REGARDING MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE 

CONTRACT.                                                                          MAYOR JESUS RUIZ 

 

A motion was made by Victor Perez seconded by Rene Rodriguez to raise the salary 

to $42,500.00 including performance reviews, monitor case load and make 

determination at end of contract cycle to see if a third (3rd) day of appearance is 

necessary.  Motion passed. 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   

 

37. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ON ADVICE RECEIVED FROM CITY 

ATTORNEY IN CLOSED SESSION, AND ACTION TO APPROVE REAL 

ESTATE TRANSACTION; AUTHORIZE FILING OR SETTLEMENT OF 

LEGAL ACTION; AUTHORIZE EMPLOYMENT OF EXPERT WITNESSES 

AND CONSULTANTS, AND EMPLOYMENT OF SPECIAL COUNSEL 

WITH RESPECT TO PENDING LEGAL MATTERS.  

                                                                                             WILLIE NORFLEET, JR. 

 

38. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ON QUALIFICATIONS OF INDIVIDUALS FOR 

EMPLOYMENT AND FOR APPOINTMENT TO BOARDS & 

COMMISSIONS, JOB PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES, REAL ESTATE 

ACQUISITION AND RECEIVE LEGAL ADVICE FROM CITY ATTORNEY 

REGARDING LEGAL ISSUES AFFECTING THESE MATTERS.  

                                                           WILLIE NORFLEET, JR. 

 

39. DISCUSSION AND ACTION REGARDING PENDING LITIGATION AND 

RECEIVE STATUS REPORT REGARDING PENDING LITIGATION.  

                                                                  WILLIE NORFLEET, JR. 

 



City of Socorro 

Regular Council Meeting 
August 21, 2014 @ 6:00 p.m. 

 Page 13 

A motion was made by Rene Rodriguez seconded by Victor Perez to delete items 

number thirty-seven (37), thirty-eight (38), and thirty-nine (39).  Motion passed. 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph E. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays: 

Abstain:   

 

44. ADJOURN   

                                                                                  

A motion was made by Rene Rodriguez  seconded by Victor Perez to adjourn at 

10:09 p.m.  Motion passed. 

 

Ayes:  Victor Perez, Rene Rodriguez, Joseph B. Bowling, Sergio Cox, and Gloria M. 

Rodriguez 

Nays 

Abstain: 

 

 

 

      __________________________ 

     Jesus Ruiz, Mayor 

 

 

   __________________________                                            __________________ 

   Olivia Navarro                                                                        Date minutes approved 

   Assistant City Clerk 





 
AMENDMENT NO. 3 

ORDINANCE NO.  322 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SOCORRO, TEXAS ADOPTING AN AMENDED BUDGET 

TO DECREASE FY-2014 ADOPTED BUDGET.  

 

WHEREAS, IT APPEARS THAT IT IS NECESSARY AND DESIREABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 

TO DECREASE THE CITY’S GENERAL FUND BUDGET IN THE AMOUNT OF  $344,371 FOR THE 

GENERAL FUND, $1,037,800 FOR SPECIAL REVENUE,  (see Exhibit A); and,  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SOCORRO, 

TEXAS, THAT; 

 

SECTION 1. FINDINGS:  

 

That the matters and facts stated in the preamble hereof be, and same are hereby found and adjudicated to 

be true and correct. 

 

SECTION 2. AMENDED BUDGET: 

 

That the 3RD  Amended Budget 2013-2014 for the City of Socorro, Texas which is attached hereto as 

Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein for all purposes, is hereby approved and adopted by the City Council 

to be effective immediately. 

 

SECTION 3. REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES: 

 

That all Ordinances of the City of Socorro, Texas or parts thereof, that conflict with this Ordinance are, to 

the extent of said conflict, hereby repealed, but only to the extent of said conflict. 

 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE: 

 

That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from the date of adoption. 

 

SECTION 5. PREREQUISITES: 
 

That this Ordinance was duly enacted with all requisites and formalities incident thereto and such is 

evidenced by the signatures affixed below. 

 

Jesus Ruiz 
Mayor 

 

Rene Rodriguez 
 At Large 

 

Sergio Cox 
District 1 

 

Gloria M. Rodríguez 
District 2 

 

Victor Perez 
District 3 

 

J.E. “Chito” Bowling 
District 4 

 

Willie Norfleet, Jr.  
City Manager 

 

City Manager
Typewritten Text
Items 12-13



Ordinance 322 

Amendment No. 3 

September 4, 2014 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SOCORRO, TEXAS. 

SIGNED this 4 th day of September, 2014.  

 

 

 

     

                                                                 ___________________________________ 

 

      Jesus Ruiz 

      Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________ 

 

        Sandra Hernandez 

           City Clerk              

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

__________________________ 

 

          City Attorney 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Introduction and First Reading:   August 21, 2014  

Second Reading and Adoption:   September 4, 2014 

 



















































City Manager
Typewritten Text
Items 14-15









124 S. Horizon Blvd.,  Socorro, Texas 79927 Tel. (915) 858-2915 Fax (915) 858-9288 

www.ci.socorro.tx.us 

                                                          

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

ORDINANCE 344 

 

AN ORDINANCE CHANGING THE ZONING OF TRACT 29-F, BLOCK 8, SOCORRO 
GRANT, FROM A-1 (AGRICULTURAL) TO C-2 (GENERAL COMMERCIAL). 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF SOCORRO, TEXAS: 

 

That pursuant to Chapter 50 of the Codification of Ordinances of the City of Socorro, Texas, 

Ordinance No. 76 A m en dm ent  1 A  of the City of Socorro, as amended, the zoning of  

Tract 29-F, Block 8, Socorro Grant (10401 Alameda Ave.) is changed from A-1 (Agricultural) 

to C-2 (General Commercial). 

 

READ, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of September, 2014.  

 

 

       CITY OF SOCORRO, TEXAS 

 

             

       Jesus Ruiz, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Sandra Hernandez, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:     APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:  

 

                

James A. Martinez      Willie Norfleet, Jr., City Manager 

Socorro City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

Introduction and First Reading:   August 21, 2014. 

Second Reading and Adoption:  September 4, 2014 

Jesus A. Ruiz 
Mayor 

 

Rene Rodriguez 
At Large 

 

Sergio Cox 
District 1 

 

 

Gloria M. Rodriguez 
District 2 

 

Victor Perez 
District 3 / Mayor Pro Tem 

 

Joseph E. Bowling 
District 4 

 

Willie Norfleet Jr. 
City Manager 

 
 

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text





City Manager
Typewritten Text
Items 16-17









124 S. Horizon Blvd.,  Socorro, Texas 79927 Tel. (915) 858-2915 Fax (915) 858-9288 

www.ci.socorro.tx.us 

                                                          

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

ORDINANCE 345 

 

AN ORDINANCE CHANGING THE ZONING OF TRACT 1-E, BLOCK 26, SOCORRO 
GRANT, FROM A-1 (AGRICULTURAL) TO R-2 (MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL). 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF SOCORRO, TEXAS: 

 

That pursuant to Chapter 50 of the Codification of Ordinances of the City of Socorro, Texas, 

Ordinance No. 76 A m en dm ent  1A  of the City of Socorro, as amended, the zoning of  Tract 

1-E, Block 26, Socorro Grant is changed from A-1 (Agricultural) to R-2 (Medium Density 

Residential). 

 

READ, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of September 2014.  

 

 

       CITY OF SOCORRO, TEXAS 

 

             

       Jesus Ruiz, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Sandra Hernandez, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:     APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:  

 

                

James A. Martinez      Willie Norfleet, Jr., City Manager 

Socorro City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

Introduction and First Reading:   August 21, 2014. 

Second Reading and Adoption:   September 4, 2014 

Jesus A. Ruiz 
Mayor 

 

Rene Rodriguez 
At Large 

 

Sergio Cox 
District 1 

 

 

Gloria M. Rodriguez 
District 2 

 

Victor Perez 
District 3 / Mayor Pro Tem 

 

Joseph E. Bowling 
District 4 

 

Willie Norfleet Jr. 
City Manager 

 
 





{Firm Documents/0345/001/00014651.DOC  }  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 346 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR COMMENCING 

OCTOBER 1, 2014 AND ENDING ON SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 FOR THE CITY OF 

SOCORRO, TEXAS. 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed City of Socorro budget prepared and submitted by the Socorro 

City Manager to the City Council and filed with the City Clerk for the City of Socorro, Texas 

and said proposed budget has remained on file for public inspection with the City Clerk for no 

less than 30 days. 

 

WHEREAS, the proper notice was given the taxpayers by publication of the proposed 

City budget and consideration of adopting said budget by Ordinance was only after a public 

hearing was held on the 11th day of September, 2014 at Socorro City Hall, 860 Rio Vista., 

Socorro, Texas 79927, which hearing was continued from day to day from time to time until the 

11th day of September, 2014 and was then closed and, 

 

WHEREAS, at said hearing all desiring to contest the said proposed City budget for the 

fiscal year October 1, 2014 to September 30, 2015, correct same or in any other matter were 

heard, and errors and all matter of errors, mistakes, inequalities or other matters requiring 

rectification, which were called to the attention of Council, were rectified and corrected. 

 

NOW THEREFORE: BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SOCORRO, TEXAS, THAT: 

 

SECTION 1: 
 

That the action of the City Council closing the hearing and overruling the protests at the 

public hearing of the 11th day of September, 2014, in these proceedings, is hereby ratified and 

confirmed by this Ordinance.  That the City Council, from the evidence finds that the adoption of 

the City budget, which was prepared by the City Manager and then left on file with City Clerk 

for public inspection for not less than 30 days, is in the best interest of the citizens of Socorro, 

Texas, and will further the purpose and goals of the citizens of the City, and will enable the 

government of the City of Socorro to carry out its necessary functions. 

 

 

SECTION II. 

Jesus Ruiz 
Mayor 

 

Rene Rodriguez 
At Large 

 

Sergio Cox 
District 1 

 

 

Gloria M. Rodríguez 
District 2 

 

Victor Perez 
District 3 / Mayor Pro-Tem 

 

Joseph E. Bowling 
District 4 

 

Willie Norfleet, Jr.  
City Manager 

 

 

City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 18



City of Socorro, Texas 

Ordinance No. 346 

Page 2 

{Firm Documents/0345/001/00014651.DOC  }  

 

 The City budget, which is attached to this Ordinance as Exhibit “A” and incorporated 

herein for all purposes, is adopted as the official budget for the City of Socorro, Texas to fund 

operations of the City government during the fiscal year of October 1, 2014 to September 30, 

2015, on a budget of $18,266,291. 

 

 

SECTION III. 

 

The City budget shall be on file with the City Clerk for public inspection throughout the 

fiscal year of October 1, 2014 to September 30, 2015 and a true and correct copy of same will be 

delivered, in hand, at the City Clerk’s office upon the request of any taxpayer and citizens of the 

City of Socorro, Texas.  Moreover, the budget cover page is amended to reflect the information 

contained in the adopted budget and the budget shall be posted on the City of Socorro web site 

by the City Clerk as soon as practical. 

 

 

SECTION IV. 

 

That the tax rate of 0.688558 per $100.00 value, which is effectively an increase in tax 

revenue, is hereby ratified and approved. 

 

SECTION V. 

 

 That this ordinance has been duly enacted with all the requisites and formalities incident 

thereto is evidenced by the below signatures. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SOCORRO, 

TEXAS. 

This 11th day of September, 2014. 

 

 

______________________________ 

Jesus Ruiz, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

Sandra Hernandez, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_______ _________________________ 

James A. Martinez, City Attorney           First Reading: September 4, 2014 

                                                           Second Reading and Adoption: September 11, 2014 



































































































































Jesus Ruiz
Mayor

Rene Rodriguez
At Large

Sergio Cox
District I

Gloria M. Rodriguez
District 2

Victor Perez
District 3/'Mayor Pro Tern

J.E. "Chito"Bowling
District 4

Willie Nor fleet, Jr.
City Manager

DATE: August 28, 2014

TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS

FROM: Adriana Rodarte

SUBJECT: DISCUSSION AND ACTION ON AMMENDING THE CITY OF
SOCORRO ORGANIZATIONAL CHART ORDINANCE 347.

SUMMARY

This action approves the amendment to the City of Socorro Organizational Chart in order
to demonstrate operations structure.

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE

Recommended that the City Council amend and update the City Organizational Chart

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Account Code (GF/GL/Dept): N/A

Funding Source: N/A

Amount: N/A

Quotes (Name/Commodity/Price) N/A

Co-op Agreement (Namc/Contract#) N/A

ALTERNATIVE

No changes to Organizational Chart

City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 19



STAFF RECOMMENDATION

City Manager and Human Resources is recommending that the City Council amend
and update the City's Organizational Chart.

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATION

1. City Manager /6^J£*MS Date

2. CFO _ Date

3. Attorney _ Date



Jesus Ruiz
Mayor

Rene Rodriguez
At Large

Sergio Cox
District I

Gloria M. Rodriguez
District 2

Victor Perez
District 3 / Mayor Pro- Tern

Joseph E. Bowling
District 4

Willie Nor fleet, Jr.
City Manager

ORDINANCE 347

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SOCORRO, TEXAS ADOPTING AN
AMENDED ORGANIZATIONAL CHART FOR THE CITY.

WHEREAS, the City Manager has recommended that the City Council amend and
update the City's Organizational Chart; and,

WHEREAS, it appears that is necessary and desirable for the City Council to amend the
City's Organi/ational Chart as set for the below.

NOW THEREFORE:

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SOCORRO,
TEXAS, THAT:

SECTION L FINDINGS.

That the matters and facts stated in the preamble hereof be, and same are hereby found
and adjudicated to be true and correct.

SECTION2. AMENDED ORGANIZATIONAL CHART.

That the Organizational Chart for the City of Socorro, which is attached here as Exhibit
"A" and incorporated herein for all purposes, is hereby approved and adopted by the City
Council to be effective immediately.

SECTION 3. REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES.

That all Ordinances of the City of Socorro, or parts thereof, that conflict with this
Ordinance are, to the extent of said conflict hereby repealed, but only to the extent of said
conflict.

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DA TE.

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from the date of adoption.



Ordinance 347
Page 2

SECTION 5. PREREQUISITES,

That this ordinance was duly enacted with all requisites and formalities incident to the
enactment of ordinances and any existing ordinance or amendments is hereby repealed
and such is evidenced by the signatures below.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
SOCORRO, TEXAS.

This IIth day of September 2014.

Sandra Hernandez, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

James A. Martinez

First Reading: September 4, 2014
Second Reading: September 11, 2014

Jesus Ruiz, Mayor

ATTEST:



Recreation
Supervise*

Part*
Suptrvijor





 

{Firm Documents/0345/001/00014659.DOC  }  

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 348 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ADOPTION OF A TAX RATE AND THE 

ASSESSMENT AND COLLECTION OF PROPERTY TAXES WITHIN THE CITY 

OF SOCORRO, TEXAS AND FURTHER, AUTHORIZING THE EL PASO CITY 

TAX OFFICE TO PERFORM THE ACTUAL ASSESSMENT AND COLLECTION 

OF SAID PROPERTY TAXES ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF SOCORRO, TEXAS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR OF OCTOBER 1, 2014 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015. 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Title 3, Local Taxation, Tax Code, contained in the Texas Civil 

Statutes which authorizes City Council to provide by ordinance, for the prompt collection 

of all taxes assessed, levied and imposed, and to make such rules and regulations, and 

pass all ordinances as they may deem necessary to the levying, laying, imposing, 

assessing and collection of any tax therein provided.  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Title 3, Local Taxation, Tax Code, contained in the Texas Civil 

Statues which states that the City Council may by ordinance, regulate the manner of 

making out tax lists or inventories and appraisals of property therein, and prescribed, and 

prescribe the oath that shall be administered on such rendition of property therein, and 

prescribe how and when the property shall thus be rendered, and to prescribe the number 

and form of assessment rolls, and fix the duties and powers of the assessor and collector, 

and adopt such measure, as they deem advisable to secure the assessment of all property 

within the limits of said city and collect the tax thereupon.  

 

WHEREAS, heretofore an ordinance was duly passed on the 11th day of September, 

2014, by the City Council adopting a City Budget for the City of Socorro, Texas, with 

such ordinance being passed in accordance with property notice to tax payers by 

publication and only after a public hearing was held on the 21st day of August 2014 and 

4th day of September 2014, pursuant to notice on the manner and for the time required by 

law.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF SOCORRO, TEXAS THAT;  

 

 

 

Jesus Ruiz 
Mayor 

 

Rene Rodriguez 
At Large 

 

Sergio Cox 
District 1  

 

Gloria M. Rodríguez 
District 2  

 

Victor Perez 
District 3 / Mayor Pro Tem 

 

Joseph E. Bowling 
District 4 

 

Willie Norfleet, Jr.  
City Manager 

 

City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 20



City of Socorro, Texas 

Ordinance No. 348 
Page 2 

 

{Firm Documents/0345/001/00014659.DOC  }  

SECTION I 

 

In accordance with the Charter of the City of Socorro and the statues of the State of 

Texas the Socorro City Council does levy a property tax on real and personal property 

situated within the boundaries of the City of Socorro for the purpose of generating 

revenue for the newly adopted budget and further that such levy is assessed in accordance 

with the property notice of the tax payers through publication and a public hearing held 

on the 21st day of August 2014 and 4th day of September, 2014 such levy being set at a 

rate of 0.688558 per $100.00 value on real and personal property situated within the 

boundaries of Socorro, Texas. 

 

THIS TAX RATE WILL RAISE MORE TAXES FOR MAINTENANCE AND 

OPERATIONS THAN LAST YEAR’S TAX RATE.  THE TAX RATE WILL 

EFFECTIVELY BE RAISED BY 17.66 PERCENT AND WILL RAISE TAXES 

FOR MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS ON A $100,000 HOME BY 

APPROXIMATELY $42.00. 

 

SECTION II 

 

In accordance with Title 3, Local Taxation, Tax Code, contained in the Texas Civil 

Statues, City Council exercises its power to provide for prompt collection of taxes 

assessed, levied and imposed under Title 3, Local Taxation, Tax Code, contained in 

Texas Civil Statues, and do make such rules and regulations by ordinance necessary to 

levy, impose and collect the property tax of .688558 per $100.00 value on property 

situated within the boundaries of the City of Socorro, Texas.  Specifically, City Council 

authorizes the assessment and collection of the newly ordained property tax. 

 

SECTION III 

 

In accordance with Title 3, Local Taxation, Tax Code, contained in the Texas Civil 

Statues, City Council exercises its power to adopt such measures, as it deems advisable to 

secure the assessment of all property within the limits of the city, and collect the taxes 

thereupon.  Specifically, City Council hereby contracts with the El Paso City Tax Office, 

thereby authorizing said office to assess all property within the limits of this city, and 

collect the taxes thereupon, for the benefit of the City of Socorro, Texas. 

 

SECTION IV 

 

The El Paso City Tax Office is hereby directed to distribute the collected funds into the 

following accounts in the following proportions: 

 

Maintenance and Operations:  .484132 

Debt Service:    .204426  

 



City of Socorro, Texas 

Ordinance No. 348 
Page 3 

 

{Firm Documents/0345/001/00014659.DOC  }  

This ordinance was passed by City Council with all the formal and legal requirements 

necessary and traditionally associated with the passage of such as evidenced by the below 

signatures on  

 

SIGNED AND APPROVED THIS 11TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2014 

 

       _____________________________ 

       Jesus Ruiz, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

___________________________________  

Sandra Hernandez, City Clerk 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

___________________________________  

James A. Martinez 

 

 

First Reading:  September 4, 2014 

Second Reading and Adoption: September 11, 2014 

 

 





City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 21









124 S. Horizon Blvd.,  Socorro, Texas 79927 Tel. (915) 858-2915 Fax (915) 858-9288 

www.ci.socorro.tx.us 

                                                          

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

ORDINANCE 349 

 

AN ORDINANCE CHANGING THE ZONING OF TRACT 1, BLOCK 5, AND TRACT 7, 
BLOCK 4, SOCORRO GRANT, FROM A-1 (AGRICULTURAL) TO C-2 (GENERAL 
COMMERCIAL). 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF SOCORRO, TEXAS: 

 

That pursuant to Chapter 50 of the Codification of Ordinances of the City of Socorro, Texas, 

Ordinance No. 76 A m en dm ent  1 A  of the City of Socorro, as amended, the zoning of  

Tract 1, Block 5, and Tract 7, Block 4, Socorro Grant is changed from A-1 (Agricultural) to C-2 

(General Commercial). 

 

READ, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of September 2014.  

 

 

       CITY OF SOCORRO, TEXAS 

 

             

       Jesus Ruiz, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Sandra Hernandez, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:     APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:  

 

                

James A. Martinez      Willie Norfleet, Jr., City Manager 

Socorro City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

Introduction and First Reading:   September 4, 2014. 

Second Reading and Adoption:   September 18, 2014 

Jesus A. Ruiz 
Mayor 

 

Rene Rodriguez 
At Large 

 

Sergio Cox 
District 1 

 

 

Gloria M. Rodriguez 
District 2 

 

Victor Perez 
District 3 / Mayor Pro Tem 

 

Joseph E. Bowling 
District 4 

 

Willie Norfleet Jr. 
City Manager 

 
 





City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 22









124 S. Horizon Blvd.,  Socorro, Texas 79927 Tel. (915) 858-2915 Fax (915) 858-9288 

www.ci.socorro.tx.us 

                                                          

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

ORDINANCE 350 

 

AN ORDINANCE CHANGING THE ZONING OF LOT 1, BLOCK 1, MOON 
ADDITION NO. 4 (10175 ARMSTRONG DR.), FROM R-1 (SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL) TO R-2 (MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL). 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF SOCORRO, TEXAS: 

 

That pursuant to Chapter 50 of the Codification of Ordinances of the City of Socorro, Texas, 

Ordinance No. 76 A m en dm ent  1A  of the City of Socorro, as amended, the zoning of  Lot 

1, Block 1, Moon Addition No. 4 (10175 Armstrong Dr.) is changed from R-1 (Single Family 

Residential) to R-2 (Medium Density Residential). 

 

READ, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of September 2014.  

 

 

       CITY OF SOCORRO, TEXAS 

 

             

       Jesus Ruiz, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Sandra Hernandez, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:     APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:  

 

                

James A. Martinez      Willie Norfleet, Jr., City Manager 

Socorro City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

Introduction and First Reading:   September 4, 2014. 

Second Reading and Adoption:   September 18, 2014 

Jesus A. Ruiz 
Mayor 

 

Rene Rodriguez 
At Large 

 

Sergio Cox 
District 1 

 

 

Gloria M. Rodriguez 
District 2 

 

Victor Perez 
District 3 / Mayor Pro Tem 

 

Joseph E. Bowling 
District 4 

 

Willie Norfleet Jr. 
City Manager 

 
 





City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 23







124 S. Horizon Blvd.,  Socorro, Texas 79927 Tel. (915) 858-2915 Fax (915) 858-9288 

www.ci.socorro.tx.us 

                                                          

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

ORDINANCE 351 

 

AN ORDINANCE CHANGING THE ZONING OF LOT 20, BLOCK 3, HILLCREST 
MANOR SUBDIVISION (10832 ARLENE CIR.), FROM R-1 (SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL) TO R-2 (MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL). 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF SOCORRO, TEXAS: 

 

That pursuant to Chapter 50 of the Codification of Ordinances of the City of Socorro, Texas, 

Ordinance No. 76 A m en dm ent  1A  of the City of Socorro, as amended, the zoning of  Lot 

20, Block 3, Hillcrest Manor Subdivision (10832 Arlene Cir.) is changed from R-1 (Single 

Family Residential) to R-2 (Medium Density Residential). 

 

READ, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of September 2014.  

 

 

       CITY OF SOCORRO, TEXAS 

 

             

       Jesus Ruiz, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Sandra Hernandez, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:     APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:  

 

                

James A. Martinez      Willie Norfleet, Jr., City Manager 

Socorro City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

Introduction and First Reading:   September 4, 2014. 

Second Reading and Adoption:   September 18, 2014 

Jesus A. Ruiz 
Mayor 

 

Rene Rodriguez 
At Large 

 

Sergio Cox 
District 1 

 

 

Gloria M. Rodriguez 
District 2 

 

Victor Perez 
District 3 / Mayor Pro Tem 

 

Joseph E. Bowling 
District 4 

 

Willie Norfleet Jr. 
City Manager 

 
 



City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 24









City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 25









NOTICE 

OF TAX REVENUE INCREASE 

 

The CITY OF SOCORRO conducted public hearings 

on August 21, 2014 and September 4, 2014 on a 

proposal to increase the total tax revenues of the 

CITY OF SOCORRO from properties on the tax roll 

in the preceding year by 17.66 percent. 

 

The total tax revenue proposed to be raised last year 

at last year’s tax rate of $0.577847 for each $100 of 

taxable value was $5,015,904. 

 

The total tax revenue proposed to be raised this year 

at the proposed tax rate of $0.688558 for each $100 

of taxable value, excluding tax revenue to be raised 

from new property added to the tax roll this year, is 

$5,877,632. 

 

The total tax revenue proposed to be raised this year 

at the proposed tax rate of $0.688558 for each $100 

of taxable value, including tax revenue to be raised 

from new property added to the tax roll this year, is 

$5,998,928 

 

The City Council of the CITY OF SOCORRO is 

scheduled to vote on the tax rate that will result in 

that tax increase at a public meeting to be held on 

September 11, 2014 at City Hall located at 860 N. 

Rio Vista at 6:00 PM. 

 

City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 26





 
RESOLUTION 477 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SOCORRO, TEXAS ADOPTING A FIVE-YEAR 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 5.08 AND  5.09 

OF THE SOCORRO CITY CHARTER.  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Socorro City Charter, Sections 5.08 and the 5.09, the City of Socorro 

shall annually update and adopt a 5-year Capital Improvement Program; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Capital Improvement Program serves as a valuable planning document serving 

as a general blueprint for capital programs and projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 5-Year Capital Improvement Program describes the specific capital 

improvement projects, provides estimated costs for those projects, and schedules the year during 

which each project will be undertaken; and 

 

WHEREAS, the capital improvement projects for the first year are included in the Fiscal Year 

2015 budget for the City of Socorro; and  

 

WHEREAS, the 5-Year Capital Improvement Program will be reconsidered annually by the City 

of Socorro and appropriately revised;  

 

WHEREAS, on September 4, 2014, the Socorro City Council held a public hearing to consider 

the 5-Year Capital Improvement Program for fiscal years 2015-2019; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the input of the public and the recommendations of 

its staff and hereby determines it to be in the public interest to adopt the 5-Year Capital 

Improvement Program; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Socorro hereby resolves: 

 

That the 5-Year Capital Improvement Program for the period beginning October 1, 2014 is hereby 

approved and adopted by the Socorro City Council.  A copy of the program is attached. 

 

  

 

 

 

Jesus Ruiz 
Mayor 

 

Rene Rodríguez 
At Large 

 

Sergio Cox 
District 1  

Gloria M. Rodríguez 
District 2   

 

Victor Perez  
District 3 – Mayor/Pro-Tem 

 

Joseph E. Bowling 
District 4 

 

Willie Norfleet, Jr.  
City Manager 

 

City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 27



Resolution 477 

September 4, 2014 

 

Passed and approved this 4th day of September 2014.  

 

            

    

                                                                

      ___________________________________ 

      Jesus Ruiz, Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Sandra Hernandez, City Clerk 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_________________________________ 

James A. Martinez 

 







City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 28













 
 

DATE:  August 28, 2014 

 

TO: Mayor and Council   

 

FROM: Willie Norfleet, Jr.  

 

SUBJECT: El Paso County 911 District FY 2015 Budget Plan 

 

SUMMARY 

 

Discussion and action to approve El Paso County 911 District FY 2015 Budget Plan 

 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

 

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE 

 

At the August 21, 2014 City Council Meeting, representatives from El Paso County 911 

District made a presentation regarding the budget plan for FY 2015.   

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 

Account Code (GF/GL/Dept):   

 

Funding Source:  

 

Amount:   

      

Quotes (Name/Commodity/Price) 

 

Co-op Agreement (Name/Contract#) 

 

 

ALTERNATIVE 

 

 

Jesus Ruiz 
Mayor 

 

Rene Rodriguez 
At Large 

 

Sergio Cox 
District 1 

 

Gloria M. Rodríguez 
District 2 

 

Victor Perez  
District 3 – Mayor Pro Tem 

 

Joseph E. Bowling 
District 4 

 

Willie Norfleet, Jr.  
City Manager 

 

City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 29



 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

Approve the El Paso County 911 District FY 2015 Budget Plan.  

 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATION 

 

1. City Manager  ___________________ Date_________________ 

 

2. CFO  ____  Date: ________________ 

 

3. Attorney ________________________ Date _______________________ 



City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 30

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text









 
 

DATE: 02/13/2014 

 

TO: City Clerk 

 

FROM: Anibal Olague  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Discussion and Action to authorize the City of Socorro to submit grant application 

in the amount of $300,000 to the Department of Agriculture, Community 

Development Block Grant Disaster Relief Program.  

 

 

SUMMARY 

  

If approved the grant will provide funds to repair sections of the following streets.  

1) Delano Dr.  

2) Favila Dr.  

3) Montell Dr.  

4) Soto Ln.  

5) Tassie Way 

6) Toyota Rd.  

7) Valle Lindo Dr.  

 

 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

Several streets were affected during the 2013 floods. Due to the local declaration of 

disaster the City is eligible to apply up to $300,000 for repairs. This is the amount of 

damage the City was able to justify after the disaster.  

 

 

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE 

 

 

 

 

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 31



FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 

No match requirement  

 

 

ALTERNATIVE 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

Approve 



 
RESOLUTION 479 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SOCORRO, TEXAS, 

AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A TEXAS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM (TxCDBG) APPLICATION TO THE TEXAS 

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE FOR THE DISASTER RELIEF FUND; AND 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ACT AS THE CITY'S EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE IN ALL MATTERS PERTAINING TO THE 

COUNTY'S PARTICIPATION IN THE TxCDBG DISASTER RELIEF PROGRAM.  

 

WHEREAS, the CITY COUNCIL of the CITY OF SOCORRO desires to develop a viable 

community, including decent housing and a suitable living environment and expanding economic 

opportunities, principally for persons of low/moderate income; and  

 

WHEREAS, certain conditions exist that represent a threat to the public health and safety; and  

 

WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the CITY OF SOCORRO to apply for 

funding under the Texas Community Development Block Grant Program;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SOCORRO, TEXAS:  

 

1. That a Texas Community Development Block Grant Program application for the 

DISASTER RELIEF FUND is hereby authorized to be filed on behalf of the CITY OF 

SOCORRO with the Texas Department of Agriculture.  

2. That the CITY OF SOCORRO’S application be placed in competition for funding under 

the DISASTER RELIEF FUND.  

3. That the application be for $300,000 of grant funds to provide  

STREET REPAIR/RECONSTRUCTION, AND IMPROVEMENT OF PUBLIC 

FACILITIES.  

4. That the CITY COUNCIL directs and designates MAYOR as the CITY’S Chief  

Executive Officer and Authorized Representative to act in all matters in connection with 

this application and the CITY'S participation in the Texas Community Development Block 

Grant Program.  

 

Passed and approved this 4th day of September 2014.  

 

Jesus Ruiz 
Mayor 

 

Rene Rodríguez 
At Large 

 

Sergio Cox 
District 1  

Gloria M. Rodríguez 
District 2   

 

Victor Perez  
District 3 – Mayor/Pro-Tem 

 

Joseph E. Bowling 
District 4 

 

Willie Norfleet, Jr.  
City Manager 

 



Resolution 479 

September 4, 2014 

            

    

                                                                

      ___________________________________ 

      Jesus Ruiz, Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Sandra Hernandez, City Clerk 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_________________________________ 

James A. Martinez 

 



Total Cost Total Feet Cost per Foot

$158,791.80 11,180 $14.20

Street Name Street Length (ft) Unit Cost per foot Cost 

1 Valle Lindo 2650 $14.20 $37,638.49

2 Favila Rd 1000 $14.20 $14,203.20

3 Toyota Rd 1100 $14.20 $15,623.52

4 Montell Dr 2500 $14.20 $35,508.01

5 Delano Dr 1680 $14.20 $23,861.38

6 Tassie Way 1250 $14.20 $17,754.00

7 Soto Ln 1000 $14.20 $14,203.20

$158,791.80



 

Disaster Relief Fund 
Application Guide 

Texas Community Development Block Grant Program 

Revised January 2012 



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

  

Contents 
 
TxCDBG Goals and Requirements ................................................................................................................. 1 
Eligible Applicants ......................................................................................................................................... 2 
National Program Objectives ........................................................................................................................ 3 
Eligible Activities ........................................................................................................................................... 4 
Ineligible Activities ........................................................................................................................................ 4 
Identifying Project Beneficiaries ................................................................................................................... 5 
Citizen Participation Plan ............................................................................................................................ 10 
Types of Applications .................................................................................................................................. 12 
Matching Funds ........................................................................................................................................... 15 
Program Requirements ............................................................................................................................... 17 
Application Instructions .............................................................................................................................. 21 
Attachments ................................................................................................................................................ 36 
Appendix:  Examples of Completed Forms ................................................................................................. 45 

 



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

1 

TxCDBG Goals and Requirements 
The goal of the Texas Community Development Block Grant (TxCDBG) Program is to the development of 
viable communities by providing decent housing and a suitable living environment, as well as by 
expanding economic opportunities, principally for persons of low-to-moderate income. 
 
The objectives of the TxCDBG Program are: 

x To improve public facilities to meet basic human needs, principally for low-to-moderate income 
persons; 

x To improve housing conditions, principally for persons of low-to-moderate income; 

x To expand economic opportunities by creating or retaining jobs, principally for low-to-moderate 
income persons; and 

x To provide assistance and public facilities to eliminate conditions hazardous to the public health 
and of an emergency nature by providing assistance and public facilities. 

 
The Disaster Relief Fund assists when an applicant’s jurisdiction has been named in a State or Federal 
disaster declaration. After the date of the event (as stated in the declaration), the applicant has 12 
months to prepare and submit an application for funding. There are several eligible uses of these funds. 
Debris clearance, culvert repair/replacement, and road reconstruction are among the most common. 
Repair and restoration activities that meet basic human needs such as water and sewer facilities, 
housing, and roads will receive top priority. Disaster Relief Fund awards range from $50,000 to 
$350,000. 
 
After being advised that an eligible natural disaster situation exists and other requirements have been 

met, TxCDBG staff will work with the local government, the Governor’s Office, and the Texas Division 

of Emergency Management (TDEM) to determine where and how TxCDBG funds can best be utilized.  
All other potential funding sources (federal, state, and local) will be reviewed to ensure that the TxCDBG 
Disaster Relief funds are used for gap financing/funding of last resort for eligible activities. 
 

Action Plan 
The requirements and procedures specified in the most recent TxCDBG Program Action Plan will govern 
the application process. Applicants are strongly encouraged to read the entire Action Plan prior to 
completing and submitting this application for funding assistance. Copies of the Action Plan are available 
on the Texas Department of Agriculture’s (TDA) Office of Rural Affairs (ORA) website or upon request. 
 

Application Submittal Requirements 
Incomplete applications and those that lack information needed to determine project eligibility are 
subject to disqualification. Application preparers should use the checklist on the last page of the 

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

2 

application to ensure the package submitted to TxCDBG is complete. Incomplete applications that are 
not immediately disqualified may experience delays in application review and contract execution. 
 
A complete application can also be subject to disqualification if the information presented is inaccurate 
or indicates that the project is ineligible. 
 
The application packet must contain two (2) signed and completed copies of the application (one with 
original signatures and one copy of the original), plus an electronic copy saved on a CD. For the 
electronic copy, only the PDF document of the application is needed.  This will allow TDRA to export the 
application into a database for faster processing. 
 
Though eligible applicants may apply for funds through the Disaster Relief and any other available 
TxCDBG fund category (i.e. TxCDBG Small Town Environmental Program (STEP) Fund or Community 
Development (CD) Fund), the projects proposed must not be substantially the same. However, projects 
submitted for the CD Fund that are not funded may be considered under the STEP Fund or the Disaster 
Relief Fund if the project meets the criteria and the priorities for each fund. 
 
All questions concerning the fund category included in this application package should be directed to: 
 

Texas Department of Agriculture 
Office of Rural Affairs 

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 12847 
   Austin, TX 78711 

Physical Address: 1700 N Congress Avenue, 11th Floor 
   Austin, TX 78701 

Telephone Number: 512-936-7891 

Fax Number: 512-936-6776 

Eligible Applicants 
Eligible applicants are non-entitlement units of general local government, incorporated cities and 
counties not participating or designated as eligible to participate in the entitlement portion of the 
federal Community Development Block Grant Program. Non-entitlement cities that are not participating 
in urban county programs through existing participation agreements are eligible applicants unless the 
city’s population counts toward the urban county CDBG allocation.   
 
Non-entitlement cities are located predominately in rural areas and are generally: 

x cities with populations less than 50,000 persons;  

x cities that are not designated as a central city of a metropolitan statistical area; or 

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

3 

x cities that are not participating in urban county programs.   
 
Non-entitlement counties are also predominately rural in nature and generally have fewer than 200,000 
persons in the non-entitlement cities and unincorporated areas located in the county. 
 
While non-entitlement units of general local government are the only eligible applicants for TxCDBG 
funding, these applicants may submit applications that will provide benefits through other sub-recipient 
groups serving the jurisdiction. 
 
For example, a county could submit an application for water distribution line improvements to a water 
system that is owned and operated by a public utility district. The improvements themselves would 
become the property of the public utility district, but the programmatic and fiscal compliance 
responsibilities would remain with the applicant (the county). 

National Program Objectives 
Each proposed activity included in an application for TxCDBG funds must meet one of the three CDBG 
National Program Objectives, or NPOs. They are: 

1. Activities Benefiting Low-to-Moderate Income Persons  

a. Low-to-Moderate Income Area Benefit – an activity that benefits all residents of an area that 
is primarily residential.  Low-to-moderate income is frequently abbreviated as “LMI.” 

b. Low-to-Moderate Income Limited Clientele – an activity that provides benefits to a specific 
group of persons generally presumed to be principally LMI. 

c. Low-to-Moderate Income Housing – an activity assisting in the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of permanent residential structures may qualify as benefiting LMI persons 
only to the extent that the housing is occupied by LMI persons. 

d. Low-to-Moderate Income Jobs – activity that creates or retains permanent jobs, at least 51 
percent of which, on a full-time equivalent (FTE) basis, are either held by or available to LMI 
persons. 

2. Prevention / Elimination of Slums or Blight  

a. Addressing Slums or Blight on an Area Basis 

b. Addressing Slums or Blight on a Spot Basis 

3. Urgent Need - Meet other community development needs of particular urgency that represent 
an immediate threat to the health and safety of residents of the community.   

 
Applicants are required to document and report the beneficiaries of each proposed application activity 
regardless of the NPO met by the activity. Once an applicant has identified the persons that will benefit 
from the proposed eligible activity there are three (3) acceptable ways to document the total 

Papa Quique

Papa Quique



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

4 

beneficiaries and number of low-to-moderate income beneficiaries for each proposed application 
activity:  U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) – 2000 Census based data, the 
completion of a TxCDBG approved survey, or a combination of the two. 

Eligible Activities 
Activities eligible under the Disaster Relief Fund are the same as those under TxCDBG (found in Section 
105(a) of the Housing and Community Development Act (HCDA) of 1974, as amended). The following are 
examples of disaster recovery activities most often funded under the Disaster Relief Fund (unless they 
are reimbursed by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) in a Federal declaration): 

x Assistance with match requirements associated with FEMA Public Assistance (PA) (Categories A, 
C-G), Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP), Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS), 
Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT), or other available aid programs. Match for HMGP 
is reserved only for applicants that are part of a declared disaster. FEMA Project Worksheets 
(PWs) or NRCS Contract Agreements are required and must be included in the application; 

x Demolition/clearance associated with a buyout project and reconstruction of damaged property 
posing an immediate threat to public safety (not otherwise addressed by FEMA); 

x Emergency construction, reconstruction, or installation of public facilities such as water and 
sewer facilities, street improvements, drainage/flood control improvements, solid waste 
disposal facilities, and other publicly-owned utilities if not completely covered by FEMA (FEMA 
or TDEM Project Worksheets must be included); 

x Acquisition of real property located in the floodplain or acquisition of property to be used for 
the provision of eligible TxCDBG activities; 

x Housing assistance activities not provided by FEMA, Small Business Administration (SBA), or 
Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs (TDHCA). 

Ineligible Activities 
Disaster Relief funds may only be used to address the specific conditions that resulted in the disaster 
declaration. For a drought declaration, new facilities to provide a supply of water will be considered 

based on an engineer’s recommendation. 
 
TxCDBG will not fund projects that provide only a temporary solution to a problem. Disaster Relief funds 
cannot be requested for the reimbursement of manpower costs already expended with early temporary 
repairs.  These costs are generally associated with federal declarations (FEMA grants). 
 
Any type of activity not described or referred to in Section 105(a) of the Housing and Community 
Development Act of 1974, as amended, is ineligible for TxCDBG funding. Specific ineligible activities 
under the TxCDBG Program include: 

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique




Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

5 

x Construction of buildings and facilities used for the general conduct of government (e.g., city 
halls and courthouses). The only exception is for improvements made to these buildings solely 
to provide complete access for elderly persons and persons with severe disabilities; 

x Financing of political activities; 

x Purchase of construction equipment; 

x Income payments, such as housing allowances; 

x New housing construction, except under the following limited circumstances:  

o TxCDBG funds are used by a sub-recipient neighborhood-based nonprofit organization or 
nonprofit organizations that serve the development needs of a non-entitlement community 
or communities. These entities may be selected by the applicant to carry out the 
construction of new housing which the eligible applicant has determined is necessary or 
appropriate to achieve its community development activities; 

o Last resort replacement housing when individuals are displaced by TxCDBG funded 
activities; 

o Reconstruction of housing on the same site which is owned and occupied by LMI persons 
where the need for reconstruction was not determinable until after TxCDBG funded housing 
rehabilitation began on the structure; and 

x Most operation and maintenance expenses. The federal regulation states that the operation and 
general maintenance of public works or facilities are ineligible activities. However, with prior 
TxCDBG approval, diagnostic activities such as smoke testing may be considered eligible.   

 

Administration Cost Restrictions 
The amount of TxCDBG funds budgeted for administration of a proposed project cannot exceed 16% of 
the TxCDBG amount budgeted for construction and acquisition. 

Identifying Project Beneficiaries 
This section includes descriptions of acceptable methods of identifying beneficiaries of a proposed 
eligible activity.  The method(s) used by an applicant to identify the beneficiaries of an activity are based 
on the type of activity proposed and the persons that could or will actually benefit from the proposed 
activity. 
 
TxCDBG staff reviews the beneficiaries reported in the application for accuracy, the acceptability of the 
method(s) used by an applicant to identify the beneficiaries for each proposed activity, and for 
compliance with the criteria for NPOs. 
 

Papa Quique

Papa Quique



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

6 

Activities Principally Benefitting Low- to Moderate-Income Persons 
An activity addresses the NPO of principally benefitting low-to-moderate income persons if it meets the 
area benefit activity, housing activity, limited clientele activity, or job activity criteria. See the CD Fund 
application guide for examples of activities under this NPO. 
 
Area Benefit Activities 
Area benefit activities must benefit all residents in an area where at least 51 percent of the residents are 
LMI persons.  Residents claimed as beneficiaries in the target area must be based on the entire area 
served by the activity.  An activity serving an area that is not primarily residential in character is not 
eligible under the area benefit criterion. 
 

Housing Activities 
In order to meet the NPO of principally benefiting LMI persons, housing activities must provide or 
improve permanent residential structures that will be occupied by LMI persons.  Eligible projects include 
(but are not limited to): 

x acquisition or rehabilitation of property by the unit of general local government, a sub-recipient, 
an entity eligible to receive assistance under section 105(a)(15) of the Housing and Community 
Development Act of 1974, as amended (neighborhood-based nonprofit organization, local 
development corporation, nonprofit organizations serving the development needs of the non-
entitlement community), a developer, an individual homebuyer, or an individual homeowner; 

x conversion of non-residential structures to residential structures; and 

x limited new housing construction (see the “Ineligible Activities” section for limitations). 
 

Limited Clientele Activities 
To qualify as a limited clientele activity, the activity must meet one of the following tests: 

1. The activity must benefit a clientele generally presumed to be principally LMI persons.  Activities 
that exclusively serve a group of persons in any one or a combination of the following categories 
may be presumed to benefit 51 percent LMI:  
a. elderly persons (age 62 and over) 
b. abused children 
c. battered spouses 
d. homeless persons 
e. illiterate adults 
f. migrant farm workers 
g. persons living with AIDS 
h. persons meeting the Census Bureau definition of “severely disabled.”  Persons are classified 

as having a severe disability if they: 
i. use a wheel-chair or have used another special aid for 6 months or longer;  

Papa Quique


Papa Quique




Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

7 

ii. are unable to perform one or more functional activities or need assistance with an 
activity of daily living (getting around inside the home, getting in or out of bed or a chair, 
bathing, dressing, eating, and toileting) or instrumental activity of daily living (going 
outside the home, keeping track of money or bills, preparing meals, doing light 
housework, and using the telephone);  

iii. are prevented from working at a job or doing housework; or  
iv. have a selected condition including autism, cerebral palsy, Alzheimer’s disease, senility 

or dementia, or mental retardation.   
v. are less than 65 years of age and are covered by Medicare or receive Supplemental 

Security Income (SSI).   
2. The activity must require information on family size and income so that it is evident that at least 

51 percent of the clientele are persons whose family income does not exceed the LMI limit. 
3. The activity must have income eligibility requirements that limit the activity exclusively to LMI 

persons.   
4. The activity must be of such a nature, and be in such a location, that the activity’s clientele will 

primarily be LMI.   
 

Slums or Blight 
Activities meeting one or more of the following criteria are considered to aid in the prevention or 
elimination of slums or blight: 

1. Activities to address slums or blight on an area basis.  An activity addresses prevention or 
elimination of slums or blight if: 

a. the area delineated by the unit of general local government meets a definition of a slum, 
blighted, deteriorated, or deteriorating area under state or local law; 

b. there are a substantial number of deteriorated or deteriorating buildings throughout the 
area or the public improvements are in a general state of deterioration; or  

c. the activity addresses one or more of the conditions that contributed to the deterioration of 
the area.   

2. Activities to address slums or blight on a spot basis.  Acquisition, clearance, relocation, historic 
preservation and building rehabilitation activities that eliminate conditions of blight or physical 
decay in smaller areas not located in a slum or blighted area will meet this objective.  Under this 
criterion, rehabilitation is limited to the extent necessary to eliminate specific conditions 
detrimental to public health and safety.  An activity involving planning may be eligible under this 
NPO if the activity is the only activity for which the grant to the unit of government is given, or 
the planning activity is unrelated to any other activity assisted by the grant, and either: 

a. the plans are for a slum or blighted area; or  

b. all elements of the planning are necessary for and related to an activity that, if funded, 
would meet one of the other criteria of elimination of slums or blight.   TxCDBG applicants 
must document the beneficiaries of proposed activities that qualify under this NPO.  



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

8 

Identification of the beneficiaries of the activities will depend on the type of activity and 
whether the activity addresses slum or blight conditions on an area or spot basis. 

 

Urgent Need 
To qualify under this NPO, activities must be designed to meet community development needs having a 
particular urgency.  An activity addresses this objective if it is designed to alleviate conditions of recent 
origin that pose a serious and immediate threat to the health or welfare of the community.  The unit of 
general local government must be unable to finance the activity on its own, and funds from other 
external sources must be unavailable. For the Urgent Need Fund, a condition is considered to be of 
recent origin if it first occurred, or was discovered, no more than 30 days prior to the date that the 
potential applicant provides a written request to the TxCDBG Program for urgent need assistance. For 
the Disaster Relief Fund, the applicant has 12 months from the date of the disaster event, as stated in 
the disaster declaration. 
 
TxCDBG applicants must document the beneficiaries of proposed activities that qualify under the 
activities designed to meet community development needs having a particular urgency. 
 
Identification of the beneficiaries of the activities will depend on the type of activity and whether it is an 
area benefit, housing, or a limited clientele activity. 
 
Applicants for TxCDBG Disaster Relief or Urgent Need assistance should contact TxCDBG staff for 
assistance in determining the required beneficiary documentation based on the proposed activities. 
 

TxCDBG Survey Requirements 
The TxCDBG survey methodology manual and forms are available in the Forms and Publications section 
of the agency website.  The methodology manual describes the only

 

 acceptable format for submission of 
survey data. 

Use of HUD-2000 Census Based Data 
Information contained in the HUD-2000 Census-based data file may be used to identify the number of 
beneficiaries and the extent of benefit for LMI persons based on an applicant’s proposed activities. 
 
To qualify an application activity under the NPO of principally benefiting LMI persons, at least fifty-one 
percent (51%) of the beneficiaries of the activity must be LMI. 
 
The HUD-2000 Census-based data file contains the number and percentage of low-to-moderate income 
persons for census geographic locations in incorporated and unincorporated areas.  The information is 
available by county, place (city or census designated place), census tract, and block group. 
 

Papa Quique


Papa Quique




Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

9 

TxCDBG will not accept any substitution for HUD-2000 Census-based information

  

.  Applicants 
considering use of HUD-2000 Census-based data to document application activity beneficiaries should 
contact TxCDBG staff for this information or obtain it from the TxCDBG website. 

The number of persons located in a 2000 Census block is available from Summary File 1 (SF 1) on the 
Census website under American FactFinder, but the LMI percentage is not available by block. 
 
When an activity will only benefit a portion of a 2000 Census block group, use SF 1 population 
information (100% count population) by block to document that a significant number of the persons in 
that block group (at least 60% of the persons) will benefit from the activity. 
 
TxCDBG will only allow the use of the HUD-2000 Census-based information to qualify an activity and to 
document the activity beneficiaries under the following conditions: 

1. The activity will benefit all of the persons within a census geographic area or a significant 
number of the persons (at least 60%) within a census geographic area.  The census geographic 
area could be a county, place, census tract, or block group.   

2. If only HUD-2000 Census-based information is used to document the beneficiaries of an 
application activity, the LMI benefit percentage must be at least 51% for a single census 
geographic area or for combinations of two or more census geographic areas.  An LMI benefit 
percentage of 50.99% is not acceptable

3. The HUD-2000 Census-based information may be used in combination with TxCDBG survey 
beneficiaries, income eligible beneficiaries, and condition eligible beneficiaries to document the 
beneficiaries of an application activity.  The activity must benefit at least 51% LMI.   

. 

4. In the event that an application activity does not benefit an entire census geographic area or a 
significant number of the persons within a census geographic area, consider conducting a local 
TxCDBG survey to document the activity’s beneficiaries and the LMI benefit percentage. 

 
See the TxCDBG Community Development Fund application guide for examples showing how HUD-2000 
Census-based data can be used to qualify a project target area. 
 
The NPO addressed by Disaster Relief Fund activities is Urgent Need. For a project to qualify under this 
NPO, the application must include the following information for each benefiting area if using HUD-2000 
Census-based data: 

1. A copy of the information from the HUD-2000 Census-based data file for the applicant; 

2. A copy of the methodology and the supporting documentation (SF 1 information if applicable) 
used to determine the total number of beneficiaries and number of low-to-moderate income 
beneficiaries for a census geographic area where only a portion of the census geographic area is 
receiving benefit from an application activity; and 



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

10 

3. For target area activities that do not benefit the entire city or county, a census map showing the 
numbers for each census geographic area, the boundaries of each census geographic area, and 
the locations of the project activities within each census geographic area receiving project 
benefit.   

 
When obtaining information or maps, first check with your local council of governments.  You may also 
contact TxCDBG staff for information concerning the availability of the HUD-2000 Census-based 
information.  Census maps are available on the U.S. Census Bureau website at 
http://factfinder.census.gov or on the Texas State Data Center website at http://txsdc.utsa.edu. 

Citizen Participation Plan 
An applicant must complete a citizen participation process that complies with the TxCDBG Citizen 
Participation Plan requirements as described in this guide prior to submitting an application. 
 
TxCDBG applicants and funded localities are required to carry out citizen participation in accordance 
with the Citizen Participation Plan adopted for the TxCDBG Program.  Each applicant certifies by signing 
the 424 Form that it has and will comply with the requirements of this Citizen Participation Plan. 
 
Each applicant must maintain a citizen participation file that includes a copy of the plan, the applicant's 
complaint procedures, any technical assistance provided by the applicant, and public notices, minutes, 
and attendance lists for public hearings. 
 

The applicant must have written citizen complaint procedures that provide a timely written response to 
complaints and grievances.  Citizens must be made aware of the location, days, and hours when copies 
of the plan are available. 

Complaint Procedures 

 

When requested, the applicant shall provide technical assistance to groups representative of persons of 
low-to-moderate income in developing proposals for the use of TxCDBG funds.  The level and type of 
technical assistance shall be determined by the applicant based upon the specific needs of the 
community's residents. 

Technical Assistance 

 

For public hearings scheduled and conducted by a TxCDBG applicant or recipient, the following public 
hearing provisions must be observed: 

Public Hearing Provisions 

1. Public notice of the hearings must be published in a local newspaper at least seventy-two (72) 
hours prior to the scheduled hearing.  The public notice must include the date, time, location 
and topics to be considered at the public hearing.  A published newspaper article may also be 
used to meet this requirement so long as it meets all content and timing requirements.  Notices 

http://txsdc.utsa.edu/
Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

11 

should also be prominently posted in public buildings and distributed to local Public Housing 
Authorities and other interested community groups.   

2. The public hearing must be held at a time and location convenient to potential or actual 
beneficiaries and include accommodations for persons with disabilities.  Furthermore, the 
applicant must make arrangements for individuals who require auxiliary aids or services if 
contacted at least two days prior to each hearing.  The public hearing must be held after 5:00 
p.m. on a weekday or at a convenient time on a Saturday or Sunday.   

3. When a significant number of non-English speaking residents are expected to participate in a 
public hearing, an interpreter must be present to accommodate the needs of the non-English 
speaking residents.   

 
Applicants must comply with the following citizen participation requirements for the preparation and 
submission of an application to the Texas Community Development Block Grant Program: 

1. The public hearing must occur prior to the adoption of the local government resolution 
authorizing the submission of the application.   

2. The locality must retain documentation of the hearing notice(s), attendance lists, minutes of the 
hearing(s), and any other records concerning the proposed use of funds for a period of one year.  
Such records must be available to the public in accordance with Chapter 552, Government Code.   

3. The public hearing must meet the following TxCDBG notification requirements and include a 
discussion with citizens covering the following topics:  

a. The development of housing and community development needs.   
b. The amount of funding available.   
c. All eligible activities under the Texas Community Development Block Grant Program.   
d. The applicant’s use of past TxCDBG contract funds, if applicable.   
e. The estimated amount of funds proposed for activities that will meet the national objective 

of benefit to low-to-moderate income persons.   
f. The plans of the locality to minimize displacement of persons and to assist persons actually 

displaced as a result of activities assisted with TxCDBG funds, if applicable.   
 
Citizens must be encouraged to submit their views and proposals regarding community development 
and housing needs, with particular emphasis on persons of low-to-moderate income who are residents 
of slum or blighted areas.  Local organizations that provide services or housing for low-to-moderate 
income persons, including the local Public Housing Authority, the local Health and Human Services 
office, and the local Mental Health and Mental Retardation office must receive written notification 
concerning the date, time, location and topics to be covered at the public hearing.  Citizens must be 
made aware of the location where they may submit their views and proposals if they are unable to 
attend the public hearing.  While more than one application may be discussed at the public hearing, a 
hearing held for the previous program year's submission of the same application does not satisfy the 
requirements for any subsequent competition.   

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

12 

 
At least five (5) days prior to the submission of an application for TxCDBG funds, the applicant must 
publish a public notice of application submittal in a local newspaper that includes the following 
information:  

1. The TxCDBG fund categories for which applications will be submitted. 

2. The amount of TxCDBG funds requested in each application. 

3. A short description of the proposed project activities in each application. 

4. The locations of the project activities included in each application. 

5. The location and hours when the application will be available for public review.   
 
Applicants must comply with the following citizen participation requirements in the event that the 
application is awarded: 

1. The locality must hold a public hearing concerning any proposed substantial change, as 
determined by TxCDBG, in the use of funds from one eligible activity to another.   

2. Upon completion of the activities, the locality shall hold a public hearing and review its program 
performance, including the actual use of TxCDBG funds.   

3. The locality must retain documentation of the hearing notice(s), attendance lists, minutes of the 
hearing(s), and any other records concerning the actual use of funds for the greater of: 

a. Three years after close-out of HUD’s grant to the State of Texas (please see TxCDBG 
website) 

b. If notified by TxCDBG in writing, the date that the final audit is accepted with all audit issued 
resolved to TxCDBG’s satisfaction (Please see date of TxCDBG audit acceptance letter if 
applicable); or 

c. A date consistent with the period required by other applicable laws and regulations as 
described in 24 CFR 570.487 and 570.488.   

Types of Applications 
Single Jurisdiction Applications 
A city or county may submit one application for funding where the project beneficiaries are limited to 
persons located within the applicant's jurisdiction. 
 
For an incorporated city, the beneficiaries would generally be limited to persons located within the 
corporate city limits. An incorporated city may submit a single jurisdiction application that includes 
activities benefitting persons located within the extra-territorial jurisdiction (ETJ) of the city. However, 
the applicant must describe how the activity benefitting persons located in the ETJ is meeting the 

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

13 

applicant’s community development and housing needs, including the needs of low-to-moderate 
income persons. 
 
An incorporated city cannot submit a single jurisdiction application that includes both beneficiaries 
located inside of the city and beneficiaries located outside of the city's ETJ. In this instance, the city and 
the county where the unincorporated area is located will be required to submit a multi-jurisdiction 
application. 
 
For a county, the beneficiaries would generally be limited to persons located in unincorporated areas 
within the county (for target area projects) or countywide (possibly for projects such as a county 
community center, county park, or courthouse accessibility improvements). 
 
However, a county may submit a single jurisdiction application on behalf of an incorporated city located 
within the county when the following TxCDBG guidelines and requirements are met: 

x The proposed activities in the application benefit the incorporated city’s residents and the 
proposed activities provide improvements to a publicly-owned facility or privately-owned utility 
that is not owned or operated by the incorporated city on whose behalf the county has 
submitted the application. As an example, a county could submit an application on behalf of an 
incorporated city that does not own or operate the water system that serves the city’s residents, 
when the water system is owned and operated by an entity such as a public water supply 
corporation, and the proposed activities in the application are for water system improvements 
that benefit the city’s residents. The city’s residents are the beneficiaries of the application 
activities, but the improvements would become the property of the public water supply 
corporation. 

x The persons benefitting from the application activities must be located within the city’s 
corporate limits and/or within the city’s ETJ. 

x The incorporated city must adopt and submit a resolution (with the TxCDBG application) 
authorizing the county to submit the application on behalf of the city. 

x The county will be the grantee and the party responsible for compliance with all program 
requirements. 

x The county or the incorporated city on whose behalf the county applied cannot submit another 
single jurisdiction application or be a participating jurisdiction in a multi-jurisdiction application 
submitted under the same TxCDBG fund category. 

x The incorporated city’s demographic information will be used for the scoring of TxCDBG 
selection criteria. 

 

Multi-Jurisdiction Applications  
A proposed project that includes an activity located in more than one jurisdiction or that includes 
beneficiaries from more than one jurisdiction must be submitted as a multi-jurisdiction application. 



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

14 

Exceptions to this requirement are the ETJ provision allowed by TxCDBG for incorporated municipalities 
under single jurisdiction applications and the county exceptions described under single jurisdiction 
applications. 
 
In order for a "multi-jurisdiction application" to be eligible for consideration for TxCDBG funding, the 

proposed project must mutually benefit residents of both applicant localities. A multi-jurisdiction 
application cannot be submitted solely based on administrative convenience, i.e., there must be a 
physical need for such a project (location, area to be served, etc.). 
 
An example of an eligible multi-jurisdiction application would be the provision of a sanitary sewer 
treatment facility that would serve households in two applicant cities. However, activities such as multi-
county street improvement projects would not meet the "physical need" requirement, as they are 
generally developed based on administrative convenience to the applicant counties. 
 
Additional criteria that must be met by multi-jurisdiction applicants are: 

1. Both applicants shall determine which one of the participating units of general local government 
will be authorized (the authorized applicant) to act in a representative capacity for all of the 
participating units. 

2. Under the Community Development Fund regional competitions, a multi-jurisdiction application 
that includes participating units of general local government from more than one state planning 
region will compete in the regional competition where the majority of the application activity 
beneficiaries are located and the authorized applicant must be located in the region where the 
application is submitted. 

3. Each participating jurisdiction shall submit a signed 424 Form and be responsible for compliance 
with the local certifications. 

4. Each participating jurisdiction shall submit a Community Needs Assessment that identifies the 
housing and community development needs and the activities designed to meet those needs for 
each of the participating jurisdictions. 

5. The authorized applicant jurisdiction and each of the other participating jurisdictions must meet 
the citizen participation requirements. 

6. Each proposed activity must meet one of the national program objectives. For this purpose, a 
similar activity carried out/located in two or more different jurisdictions, such as sewage 
collection lines/service connections to be installed in each of the participating jurisdictions, is 
considered as two separate activities. A common activity, such as the sewage treatment plant 
that would serve each of the participating jurisdictions, is considered to be one activity. 

7. The authorized applicant assumes overall responsibility for ensuring that the application 
activities will be carried out in accordance with statutory requirements. In order to accomplish 
this, the authorized applicant must enter into a legally binding cooperation agreement with each 
participant that includes the above criteria. 



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

15 

8. All jurisdictions participating within the multi-jurisdiction application must be TxCDBG eligible. 
For example, if a city and county are submitting a multi-jurisdiction application and the city is 
currently ineligible due to past performance issues, the application will be deemed ineligible. 

Matching Funds 
The following types of contributions are acceptable if matching funds are included in a DR application: 

1. Cash Only 

2. In-kind Services/Equipment Use 

3. Materials or Supplies 

4. Land 

5. Any combination of the above 
 
Match can be considered only if committed for activities proposed for funding with TxCDBG funds and 
the match will be used in the same target areas as the TxCDBG funds, or the match will be used for 
activities that are directly related to supporting the activities proposed for TxCDBG funding. 
 
Except for cash match, the applicant must provide an attachment/schedule to Table 2, Budget 
Justification, which shows how the value of each type of match was determined. The following 
documentation is acceptable to TxCDBG for the different types of match: 
 

Acceptable documentation for cash match is described in “Letter(s) of Commitment” section (e.g., local 
government resolution, letters of commitment from other local entities, state/federal agency contract 
award letter, etc.). 

Cash 

 

The value of force account labor match must be based on the estimated TxCDBG contract related 
construction hours to be worked by force account workers and the hourly wages to be paid and cannot 
be based on labor costs estimated through the bid/contract method. 

Force Account Labor (in-kind service) 

 
The applicant must provide an attachment/schedule which shows how the value of the match was 
determined (number of estimated contract related construction hours multiplied by the hourly wage 
rates paid for each worker). Documentation regarding this information should be included with the 
application. 
 

The value of in-kind administration and engineering match must be based on the estimated TxCDBG 
contract-related hours to be worked by administrative/engineering staff and the hourly wages or salary 

Administration/Engineering (in-kind service) 

Papa Quique

Papa Quique

Papa Quique



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

16 

to be paid and cannot be based on a percentage of the project cost method or on an estimated cost of 
the service(s) if an administrative/engineering consultant(s) were hired. 
 
The applicant must provide an attachment/schedule which shows how the value of the match was 
determined. The schedule should include the estimated contract-related staff-work hours multiplied by 
the hourly wages or salary to be paid and the estimated value of other TxCDBG-eligible 
administration/engineering costs (e.g., materials, supplies, bonding, postage, audits, 
plans/specifications, construction mapping, etc.). If you are unsure about the eligibility of any 
administrative or engineering costs, please contact TxCDBG staff for a determination. 

 

The value of in-kind equipment use match for equipment owned by the locality must be based on a use 
allowance or depreciation (both cannot be used for the same piece of equipment) and cannot be based 
on the estimated rental cost of such equipment if already owned by the locality. 

Equipment Use (in-kind) 

 
To document the value of estimated in-kind equipment use match based on a use allowance, the 
applicant may use equipment hourly rates and mileage rates established by the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (available from TxCDBG). Depreciation value may be used only if the equipment is 
not already fully depreciated and the schedule is based on acquisition cost. The applicant must provide 
an attachment/schedule, which shows how the value of the match was determined. 
 
If determining value by use allowance, the schedule must include a list of the equipment (including the 
capacity or size of the equipment), the hourly use rate or mileage rate, and the number of estimated 
hours or miles that each piece of equipment will be used on project related activities. 
 
If determining value based on depreciation, the schedule must include a list of the equipment, the 
depreciation schedule, and the acquisition cost of each piece of equipment. 
 

The value of materials/supplies to be provided by the applicant, and already owned by the applicant, 
must be based on the purchase price of the materials/supplies at the time of purchase and cannot be 
based on the current purchase price of such materials and supplies. 

Materials and Supplies 

 
The applicant must provide an attachment/schedule which shows how the value of the match was 
determined. The schedule must include a list of the materials/supplies to be provided by the applicant, 
the number of units and the unit price acquisition cost of each material/supply. 
 

The value of land donations of public or private property must be based on an independent appraisal 
report establishing the fair market value or on the purchase price of the property at the time of 
purchase.  

Land 



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

17 

 
Either way, the value claimed must be based on the amount of property actually needed for the TxCDBG 
project (e.g., the applicant cannot claim the value for a 200 acre tract of land if only one acre is needed 
for the TxCDBG project). 
 
The applicant must provide the appraisal report or deed of purchase establishing the value of the 
property needed for the TxCDBG project. 
 
TxCDBG may reimburse funded applicants for any costs (except for application preparation costs) 
incurred prior to the TxCDBG Contract Start Date. If any contract-related professional service costs are 
paid with local funds, these costs may be applied toward the applicant's local match contribution, if the 
application is funded. 
 
TxCDBG strongly recommends that applicants follow the professional services procurement guidelines 
included in the most recent TxCDBG Implementation Manual to contract for such services. Following 
those guidelines will ensure a competitive process and compliance with all applicable state federal 
requirements.  

Program Requirements 
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA)  
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires the Office of Management 
and Budget (OMB) to develop a publicly available, free-of-charge, searchable website on federal 
funding. Federal funding includes grants, sub-grants, loans, awards, cooperative agreements, and other 
forms of financial assistance.  
 
The TxCDBG program will be responsible for providing the name of entities receiving awards, the 
amount of the awards, transaction types (grant, loan, etc.), funding agency, Catalog of Federal Domestic 
Assistance (CFDA) number, program source, and a descriptive award title for all TxCDBG awards. 
Additional information deemed relevant by the OMB must also be provided. Furthermore, the Act 
requires that required data be made available within 30 days of the award.   
 

Fair Housing Activities 
Any locality receiving funds under the Texas Community Development Block Grant Program must certify 
that it will affirmatively further fair housing. Each funded locality must conduct at least one fair housing 
activity during the contract period, even if the locality is currently undertaking fair housing activities. 
Activities that qualify as affirmatively furthering fair housing include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 

x Cities may pass a fair housing ordinance and publicize the existence of such an ordinance. 

Papa Quique



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

18 

x Counties may adopt written fair housing policies and procedures that are equivalent to a fair 
housing ordinance and publicize the existence of such policies. 

x The development of a strategy to pass a fair housing ordinance to be evidenced by public 
hearings and input from interested parties. 

x The establishment of a written local complaint and monitoring process and notification to the 
public of its existence. 

x The initiation of a fair housing counseling referral service that provides housing choices outside 
historically minority and/or low-to-moderate income neighborhoods to be evidenced by 
adoption of written procedures and publication of the availability of such service. 

x The completion of a community-wide housing analysis to determine impediments to fair 
housing and actions to eliminate these impediments. 

x The designation of April, or some other month, as Fair Housing Month through resolution or 
proclamation along with other activities to support fair housing. 

 

Readiness to Proceed Requirements 
Please refer to section IV (a) of the 2012 TxCDBG Action Plan. 
 

Conflict of Interest 
Under the conflict of interest provisions at 24 CFR 570.489 (h), that are included in the regulations 
governing state administration of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) non-entitlement funds 
(24 CFR 570, Subpart I), no persons who exercise or have exercised any function or responsibilities with 
respect to TxCDBG activities, or who are in a position to participate in a decision making process, or gain 
inside information regarding TxCDBG activities, may obtain a financial interest or benefit from the 
activity, or have interest in any contract, subcontract, or agreement, or the proceeds thereunder, either 
for themselves or those with whom they have family or business ties, during their tenure, or for one 
year thereafter.  
 
These conflict of interest provisions apply to any person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, 
or elected official of the state, or of a unit of general local government, or of any designated public 
agencies, or sub-recipients that are receiving CDBG funds.  
 
Under these provisions, a conflict of interest would exist if a member of a mayor's family was selected to 
receive housing rehabilitation assistance through a city program financed with TxCDBG funds. Another 
example where a conflict of interest would exist is a situation where a consultant, who is employed by 
an engineering firm, has been selected by a city to provide grant administration services and the city is 
considering the selection of an engineer from that same firm to provide grant engineering services.  
 
Exceptions to the conflict of interest provisions may be granted on a case-by-case basis if it is 
determined that such exception will serve to further the purpose of TxCDBG and the effective and 

Papa Quique



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

19 

efficient administration of the project. An exception may be considered only upon written request from 
the city or county that includes the following documentation: 

1. A disclosure of the nature of the conflict, accompanied by an assurance that there has been 
public disclosure of the conflict and a description of how the public disclosure was made. 

2. An opinion of the attorney for the city or county that the interest for which the exception is 
sought would not violate state or local law. 

3. Whether the exception would provide a significant cost benefit or an essential degree of 
expertise to the project which would not otherwise be available. 

4. Whether an opportunity was provided for open competitive bidding or negotiation. 

5. Whether the person affected is a member of a group or class of low or moderate income 
persons intended to be the beneficiaries of the assisted activity, and the exception will permit 
such person to receive generally the same interests or benefits as are being made available or 
provided to the group or class. 

6. Whether the person affected has withdrawn from his/her functions or responsibilities, or the 
decision making process with respect to the specific assisted activity in question. 

7. Whether the interest or benefit was present before the affected person was in the position as 
an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or elected official of the city or county, or of any 
designated public agencies, or sub-recipients that are receiving CDBG funds. 

8. Whether undue hardship will result to the city or county or the persons affected when weighed 
against the public interest served by avoiding the prohibited conflict. 

9. Any other relevant considerations.  
 

False Information on Applications 
The following actions may be taken, on a case-by-case basis where TxCDBG staff finds that an applicant 
provided false information in its application for TxCDBG funding. 
 
If the applicant provides false information in a TxCDBG application that has the effect of increasing the 
applicant's competitive advantage, or false beneficiary information that increases the number or 
percentage of potential beneficiaries, TxCDBG staff will make a recommendation for action to the State 
TxCDBG director.  
Actions that the Director may make include, but are not limited to: 

1. Disqualification of the application and ineligibility to apply for TxCDBG funding for a period of at 
least one year but not to exceed two program years. 

2. Even if an award has been made, the locality may be liable for funds expended if adjustment to 
the scores would have resulted in a change in rankings for the purpose of funding. 



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

20 

3. Holding the locality ineligible to apply for TxCDBG funding for a period of two program years or 
until the issue of restitution is resolved, whichever is longer. 

 
Appeals Process 
Refer to Title 4 Part 1 §30.1 (g) of the Texas Administrative Code (TAC).  

 
Minority Participation 
The Texas Community Development Block Grant Program will maintain the goal of encouraging minority 
participation and will assist communities in identifying potential minority contractors and 
subcontractors through the ongoing Minority Business Enterprise program. 

 
Local Certifications 
Each applicant for TxCDBG funding must certify by signing the 424 Form that local certifications included 
in this application guide have been followed in the preparation of any TxCDBG application and will 
continue to be followed in the event of TxCDBG funding.  
 
Each TxCDBG applicant is required to certify that: 

1. It will minimize displacement of persons as a result of activities assisted with such funds. 

2. The program will be conducted and administered in conformity with Title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964 (42 USC 2000d et seq.) and the Fair Housing Act (42 USC 3601-20), and that it will 
affirmatively further fair housing, as specified by TxCDBG. 

3. It will provide opportunities for citizen participation, hearings and access to information with 
respect to its community development programs, and that it is following the TxCDBG Program 
Citizen Participation Plan. 

4. It will not attempt to recover any capital costs of public improvements assisted in whole or in 
part with such funds by assessing any amount against properties owned and occupied by 
persons of low-to-moderate income, including any fee charged or assessment made as a 
condition of obtaining access to such public improvements unless:  (A) such funds are used to 
pay the proportion of such fee or assessment related to the capital costs of such public 
improvements that are financed from revenue sources other than such funds; or (B) for 
purposes of assessing any amount against properties owned and occupied by persons of low-to-
moderate income who are not persons of very low income, the contractor certifies that it lacks 
sufficient funds under this contract to comply with the requirements of clause (A). 

5. It will comply with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act 
of 1970, as amended, and Federal implementing regulation at 49 CFR Part 24, and the 
requirements of section 570.606 including the following of a residential anti-displacement and 
relocation assistance plan, as specified by TxCDBG, in the event that displacement of residential 
dwellings will occur in connection with a project assisted with TxCDBG funds. 



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

21 

6. It has adopted or will adopt and enforce a policy prohibiting the use of excessive force by law 
enforcement agencies within its jurisdiction against any individuals engaged in nonviolent civil 
rights demonstrations and enforce applicable State and local laws against physically barring 
entrance to or exit from a facility or location which is the subject of such nonviolent civil rights 
demonstrations within its jurisdiction. 

7. To the best of the TxCDBG applicant’s knowledge and belief, no Federal appropriated funds 
have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the TxCDBG applicant, to any person for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in 
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the 
making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement. 

8. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person 
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in 
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the TxCDBG 
Contractor shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form To Report 
Lobbying", in accordance with its instructions. 

9. The TxCDBG contractor shall require that the language of this certification be included in the 
award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and 
contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall 
certify and disclose accordingly. 

Application Instructions 
424 Form 
The 424 Form is a standard federal document required for disbursement of federal funds. By signing at 
the bottom of the form, the applicant’s authorized representative also certifies observance of TxCDBG 
Citizen Participation Plan requirements. 

1. Type of Submission:  Under the Application column, select either Construction or Non-
Construction. Most TxCDBG applications, except for Planning-only applications, include some 
construction activities. 

2. Date Submitted:  To use the calendar provided, click on the drop-down arrow on the right side 
of the box. 

3. Date Received by State:  Leave this field blank. 

4. Date Received by Federal Agency:  Leave this field blank. 



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

22 

5. Applicant Information:  Provide the applicant’s Legal Name (e.g., City of ABC, ABC County) and 
the Organizational Unit (can be the same as the Legal Name). Mailing address, telephone 
number, fax number, and email address are required for both the applicant and the 

application preparer. The applicant’s physical address and county are also required. 

6. Employer Identification Number:  Also known as the Federal Tax ID, this 14-digit number is 
required to disburse funds. 

6a.  DUNS Number:  All applicants must have a Data Universal Numbering System number to apply 
for Federal funds. The DUNS number is a nine-character identification number provided by Dun 
and Bradstreet. There is no charge to obtain a DUNS number. For additional information, visit 
the Dun and Bradstreet website at www.dnb.com. Failure to provide the applicant’s DUNS 
number at the application stage may result in delayed award disbursement. 

7. Type of Applicant:  Select County or City. 

8. Type of Application:  Check the appropriate box. 

9. Name of Federal/State Agency:  Provided by TxCDBG 

10. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number:  Provided by TxCDBG 

11. Project Type:   Provide a short description of the construction activities included in the 
application such as: “Wind power structure for brackish water / RO treatment”, etc. 

12. Type of Application:  Provided by TxCDBG 

13. Target Area(s) Affected by the Project:  Briefly identify the areas of the city or county affected by 
the project. Acceptable descriptions would be: “The ABC Community in southeast XYZ County”, 
“The ABC Community and LMN Community in XYZ County”, “The ABC Water Supply Corporation 
Service Area”, “The A, B, C, and D Colonias of XYZ County”, and “Jollyville neighborhood in the 
northwest portion of ABC Town”. 

14. Applicant’s Fiscal Year:  Indicate the beginning and end dates of the applicant's fiscal year. 

15. Congressional Districts:  Provide the congressional districts of the entity applying for funding, as 
well as for the proposed project site(s). This information is available through the “Who 
Represents Me” feature at the Texas State Legislature’s web site:  www.fyi.legis.state.tx.us. 

16. Estimated Funding:   

 TxCDBG Request:  Amount requested from TxCDBG through this application 

 Federal:  Amount committed from federal resources such as FEMA or NRCS 

 State:  Amount committed from state resources such as TWDB 

 Applicant:  Amount of match committed by the applicant 

Local:  Amount committed from local resources such as a WSC, WCID, MUD, or any other 
local entity other than the applicant 

 Other:  Amount committed from resources other than those listed above 



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

23 

 Total:  The value in this field will calculate automatically. 

17. Is application subject to review by State Executive Order 12372 Process? – For TxCDBG 
applications, the answer to this question is “No.” However, if the applicant provides a copy to 
the Regional Planning Commission, estimate the date of submission to the Regional Planning 
Commission for Texas Review and Comment System (TRACS) review. 

18. Is the Applicant delinquent on any Federal debt? - If the answer is “Yes,” include an explanation 
concerning the nature, amount, and date when payment of the debt became delinquent. 

19. Certification:  Before signing the 424 Form, the authorized signatory should read the text in this 
field carefully and review the Local Certifications and Citizen Participation Plan sections of this 
guide. Complete all sub-fields prior to signature. 

 
Project Approval Information 
This form asks for variety of information about a proposed project. Please be sure to verify your 
responses, as TxCDBG staff may rely on this information to make important decisions regarding the 
project’s approval status. Some items on this form include follow-up questions that will only appear if 
necessary. If a question does not apply to the proposed project, select “N/A”. Failure to respond to any 
item on the Project Approval Information form will result in a deficiency notice.  
 

List of All Identified Community Needs 
Each applicant must prepare an assessment of local housing and community development needs; allow 
for citizen input in the development and needs assessment through public hearings, and document that 
any activity benefiting persons located within the extraterritorial jurisdiction is meeting its housing and 
community development needs. 
 
Provide a list of all the applicant’s identified community development and housing needs, not just those 
addressed in the application. List the needs in order of importance, using the boxes marked “+” and “x” 
to add or delete space for additional items. 

 
Community Needs Assessment Questionnaire  
Provide the information requested for each item, including information concerning the applicant’s past 
and future efforts to provide affordable housing opportunities in the applicant’s jurisdiction and the 
applicant’s past efforts to provide infrastructure improvements through the issuance of general 
obligation or revenue bonds. A response is required for each item; “None” and “N/A” are acceptable. 
 

The Needs Addressed In This Application Were Determined By 
Indicate the method(s) used to determine the needs addressed in this application, including the date(s) 
of each method/assessment. If the exact date is not known, choose the first day of the appropriate 
month and year.  
 



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

24 

Description of the Need(s) Addressed in This Application 
Provide a description of the problem the proposed project will address. TxCDBG will use the information 
from this section to draft a contract in the event that the application is successful. Please double-check 
for accuracy and do not use all capital letters. 
 
For example: 
The Green Creek Water Supply Corporation water system does not meet the Texas Commission on 
Environmental Quality (TCEQ) regulations 290.44(D) as required by law. This system is unable to meet 
the TCEQ volume and water pressure requirements. 

 
General Obligation and Revenue Bond Information 
List and describe the applicant’s current general obligations and bond revenue status. This information 
helps TxCDBG staff establish that local resources sufficient to address the problem are not available. 
 

Financial Capacity/Infrastructure Financing 
Part A of this form gives an indication of the applicant’s financial capacity and that sufficient local 
resources are not available to resolve the problem. Part B illustrates how the locality has financed its 
previous infrastructure projects. Both sections must be completed. 
 

Disaster Relief Information 
These questions pertain to specific Disaster Relief/Urgent Need eligibility thresholds and other fund-
specific information. Responses to all questions are required for TxCDBG staff to determine project 
eligibility. All questions must be answered to determine the applicant’s eligibility for Disaster Relief or 
Urgent Need funds. 
 

Project Summary 
This section consists of three questions intended to summarize most basic aspects of the proposed 
project. These responses will be used for contract preparation and data collection for HUD reporting. 
Please be sure the information provided in this section is accurate and in agreement with all other parts 
of the application. To answer the questions on this form, follow the instructions below: 

1. State the nature of the problem by expanding on the Description of Needs from the previous 
section, as well as specific locations and the state of existing facilities.  

2. Describe what action is required to address the problem, including the type and amount of 
material required for construction activities. For projects that will take place in more than one 
target area, be sure to describe the conditions and proposed work at each site.  

3. Discuss the project’s anticipated outcomes, including the number of beneficiaries it will serve 
and the deficiencies it will resolve (i.e. TCEQ compliance or other problems discussed in the first 
section). 



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

25 

4. If applicable, identify and describe anticipated Acquisition. 

 

Activity-Specific Questions 
To access activity-specific questions, click the boxes next to the appropriate activities. Answer all 
questions related to each of the activities proposed in the application. 
 

Table 1 
In Table 1, you will identify the total number of project beneficiaries, the number of low-to-moderate 
income beneficiaries, and the amount of TxCDBG, Local/Other, and Total funds budgeted for the project. 
 
Provide the following information for each proposed activity. For activities that share the same location, 
beneficiaries, and National Program Objective, use the “+” box on the right side of the page to add 
activity line items. Data for activities in a different location, serving different beneficiaries, or addressing 
a different NPO must appear on a separate Table 1 form.  
 
Example #1 – The application for a water system improvement project with line replacement to improve 
pressure serving 100 beneficiaries and first-time water system connections serving 55 would require 
two separate Table 1 forms. This is because the private property improvements (yard lines) of the first-
time connections comprise only the LMI portion of the line replacement’s beneficiaries. The non-LMI 
beneficiaries are included in water system improvements portion of the project. In this case, 
determining the project’s total beneficiary count is not as simple as adding together the totals for the 
two activities because the first-time connection beneficiaries benefit from both activities and must be 
counted only once. Therefore, the total beneficiary count is 100. 
 
Example #2 – A road reconstruction project proposed in two target areas, serving 100 beneficiaries in 
neighborhood A and 100 in neighborhood D would require two Table 1 forms – one for each target area. 
Therefore, the total beneficiary count is 200, but each Table 1 will reflect the 100 beneficiaries in that 
area. 
 
Example #3 – Improvements to both water and sewer systems serving the same 100 beneficiaries in a 
single target area would require just one Table 1 form. Although the activities differ, they serve the 
same population through the same NPO and occur in the same location. The total project beneficiary 
count is 100, because the beneficiaries are the same although they are served by two activities. 
 
To add a new Table 1 form, click the “Add Another Table” button at the top of the page, or click 
“Remove this Table 1” to remove an unnecessary page. 
 
Activity Description

 

 – Choose the appropriate activity from the drop-down list. Once you have selected 
an activity, the appropriate HUD activity number will appear in the next field.  



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

26 

Most projects involve at least three activities; at least one construction item and general administration 
are mandatory. For most infrastructure projects, engineering/architectural services should be included 
even if not paid with TxCDBG funds. When completing the form for the general administration activity, 
the gender, ethnicity, and census geographic area information is not required. 
 
For the general administration line item, use the “TxCDBG Construction” and “Other Construction” 
columns to indicate the portions of the administration costs to be paid by TxCDBG funds and other funds 
respectively. Engineering and acquisition costs are not applicable to general administration and should 
be left blank for both TxCDBG and other funds. 
 
In some cases, more than three activities apply even if the application is for a single purpose. One 
example is housing projects that include rehabilitation, clearance, and relocation activities. 
 
Total Activity Beneficiaries (Activity Benes)

 

 – For projects with multiple activities, each separate activity 

requires a separate beneficiary count. This is true when activities take place in different sectors of a 
jurisdiction, but may also be true when the activities are proposed in the same general vicinity. 

For example, if a proposed project includes street improvements and sewer line improvements in the 
same part of a community, a survey conducted for the project should produce a separate sub-tabulation 
for each activity. If the activity locations overlap completely and serve the same population, the 
beneficiary totals will be identical. If the activity locations overlap partially or not at all, the totals will 
differ because each activity serves a different population. 
 
Activity LMI Beneficiaries (Activity LMI Benes)

 

 – This column should reflect the number of persons 
identified in the Activity Benes column whose income falls below 80% of the county, statewide non-
metropolitan, or metropolitan statistical area (MSA) median family income (low-to-moderate income 
persons). 

Activity LMI Beneficiary Percentage (Activity LMI %)

 

 – The percentage of an activity’s beneficiaries that 
are LMI. For projects addressing the low-to-moderate income NPO, the TxCDBG program requires that 
this amount be at least 51% for each construction activity. 

TxCDBG Construction $ – Indicate the amount of TxCDBG funds requested for each construction

 

 activity 
(or administration). Be sure to substantiate this figure for all construction activities on Table 2 – Budget 
Justification. 

TxCDBG Engineering $ – The amount of TxCDBG funds requested to pay engineering

 

 costs associated 
with the activity. This amount should also appear on Table 2 – Budget Justification. 

TxCDBG Acquisition – The amount of TxCDBG funds requested to pay acquisition

 

 costs associated with 
the activity. 



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

27 

Other Construction $ – Show the amount of local or other matching funds committed to pay for the 
construction
 

 costs associated with the activity. 

Other Engineering $ – The amount of local or other matching funds committed to pay for the 
engineering
 

 costs associated with the activity. 

Other Acquisition $ – Indicate the amount of local or other matching funds committed to pay the 
acquisition
 

 costs associated with the activity. 

The source(s) of all other funds must be identified in the space that appears on the form when the 
“other” amount is greater than zero. TxCDBG also requires a firm letter of commitment documenting 
each outside source of funding. Local match funds require a resolution passed by the locality's governing 
body. Please note that the documentation of any commitment of other funds must indicate they would 
not be expended on that particular activity if not used as TxCDBG match. 
 
Activity Total

 

 – The total cost of completing each activity, including funds from TxCDBG and all other 
sources. The total for all activities should match the total project cost on the 424 form. The amount 
requested for general administration must not exceed 16% of the combined TxCDBG amounts requested 
for construction and acquisition/relocation activities. The locality is responsible for any cost incurred for 
general administration (program administration, compliance, audit, etc.) that exceeds the TxCDBG-
funded amount. 

Gender Data by Activity

 

 – The number of male and female beneficiaries of each activity. The number in 
the Total Benes column should match the Activity Benes column in the section above. 

Race/Ethnicity by Activity

 

 – Provide the gender, race, and ethnicity data of beneficiaries individually for 
each activity (excluding administration and engineering). 

According to a requirement promulgated by the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) and the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), beneficiaries for the Community Development 
Block Grant Program (CDBG) must now consider persons of Hispanic or Latino origin as an ethnic group. 
Therefore, persons of Hispanic or Latino origin must also be included under one or more of the single 
race or multi-race categories. The number of persons shown in the single race or multi-race categories, 
not including the persons shown as Hispanic or Latino origin, should equal the total number of project 
beneficiaries when added together. The number in the Total Activity Beneficiaries column must match 
the Activities column in the section above. 
 
Construction Completion Method(s)

x choose one (1) for activities that will be accomplished through the bid/contract process;  

 – Identify how each proposed activity will be accomplished: 

x choose two (2) for force account labor (performed by the applicant’s own employees); and  



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

28 

x choose three (3) for a combination of both (1) and (2).  
 
Be sure to provide this information for administration and engineering activities as well as construction 
items. 
 
National Objective
 

 – Select the National Program Objective the proposed project will address. 

Census Geographic Area Data

 

 – For reporting purposes, HUD requires that TxCDBG collect information 
regarding the location of each project activity. The county code/FIPS code will automatically populate 
when you choose the applicant’s county from the drop down menu on the cover page. Next, indicate 
census tract and block group(s) where the majority of the activity’s beneficiaries reside. If applicable, 
indicate that the project provides city- or county-wide benefit by selecting the appropriate box to the 
right of the County Code. This information is required in order for TxCDBG staff to process award 
disbursements, but is not used to address National Program Objectives. 

Beneficiary Identification Methods

x HUD 2000 Census-based Data; 

 – There are three acceptable ways to determine how many 
beneficiaries a project will serve: 

x TxCDBG-approved Survey; and 

x TxCDBG-approved Limited Clientele Information. 
 
Indicate which method was used by selecting the appropriate box, and then provide the number of 
individuals and housing units identified using each method. 

 
Table 2 – Budget Justification 
A complete Table 2 is required for all public works activities. Costs related to housing rehabilitation 
activities, other than water or sewer connections on private property related to the installation of first-
time water or sewer service, do not have to be reflected on this form. For projects involving more than 
one activity, this form should reflect each separate activity and its applicable costs. 
 
Do not include cost categories such as contingency funds, profit, overhead, and bonding as separate 
costs. They should be built into the estimated construction costs. 
 
Refer to the Appendix for an example of a completed Table 2. 
 
Activity Description and Activity #

 

 – Click the column header for a full list of activity descriptions and 
their corresponding numbers. Activities shown on this form must correspond to those shown on Table 1. 
The appropriate activity number will appear automatically when an activity is selected.  



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

29 

Materials/Facilities/Services

 

 – In this column, list the materials/facilities/services associated with each 
activity. 

Localities may not levy special assessments, fees and service connection/tap-on costs on low-to-
moderate income persons to recover the TxCDBG-financed portion of a public improvement. However, 
they may do so to recover the portion financed with other funding sources provided TxCDBG funds pay 
these costs for the LMI beneficiaries. 
 
Under certain conditions, TxCDBG funds may pay special assessments and fees for low-to-moderate 
income persons even if the public improvements are funded by another source. Payment of special 
assessments/fees constitutes TxCDBG assistance to the public improvement. Therefore, TxCDBG funds 
may pay for the assessments/fees on behalf of LMI persons provided that:  

x the installation of the public improvements was carried out in compliance with requirements 
applicable to activities assisted under TxCDBG, including labor standards, environmental review 
requirements, and citizen participation;  

x the installation of the public improvement meets a TxCDBG national program objective; and, 

x TxCDBG funds do not pay for the assessment/fees on behalf of non low-to-moderate income 
persons. 

 
Force account labor costs, whether paid with TxCDBG funds or included as local match, must be based 
on the estimated TxCDBG contract-related construction hours to be worked by force account workers 
and the hourly wages to be paid, not on labor costs estimated through the bid/contract method. The 
use of force account in a TxCDBG contract requires separate Force Account Administration Certification, 
which may be obtained by attending a TxCDBG Project Implementation Workshop. 
 
The value of materials/supplies to be provided by the applicant, and already owned by the applicant, 
must be based on the purchase price of the materials and supplies at the time of purchase and cannot 
be based on the current purchase price of such materials/supplies. 
 
Equipment costs for equipment owned by the locality, whether to be paid with TxCDBG funds or 
included as local match, must be based on a use allowance (such as those used by FEMA) or 
depreciation (based on acquisition cost, and only if the equipment is not already fully depreciated). 
Calculate all costs based on hours the equipment is in use on the project. 
 
Price per Unit, Unit, and Quantity

1. Break down the construction costs into labor and materials components for each activity (use 
this method for activities involving force account labor); or 

 – There are two acceptable methods for determining actual 
construction costs: 



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

30 

2. Use unit price ($/Unit) and the number of units (Qty)

 

 for each activity. The units used (e.g., 
linear feet (lf), square feet (sf), etc.) must be priced to include all proposed improvements 
related to and necessary for the major construction activity.  

For projects that will be completed using force account labor, use the materials/facilities/services 
column to calculate the value of the force account, such as the estimated contract-related construction 
hours multiplied by hourly wage rates with the total amount indicated in the Construction $ column, or 
attach a separate Force Account Schedule. 
 
Construction $

 

 – The price of a material associated with a construction activity. This is the quantity in the 
“$/Unit” column multiplied by the number in the “Qty” column. 

Acquisition $

 

 – Any proposed activity involving acquisition of real property, easements, rights-of-way, 
etc., must have the projected acquisition costs broken out by the activity for which the acquisition is 
needed. Acquisition costs associated with construction activities, such as easements for a water system 
improvement project, should be shown in the “Acquisition $” column. Please keep in mind that TxCDBG 
requires compliance with the Uniform Real Property Acquisition and Relocation Policies Act of 1970. 

 

Do not add a separate Acquisition activity line item unless the project involves acquisition of real 

property, in which case the “Construction $” and “Engineering $” columns should be blank.  

Eng./Arch. $ (Engineering and Architectural Cost)

x Survey; 

 – Engineering/architectural costs must be broken out 
by each construction activity and by the following engineering services: 

x Design; and 

x Construction inspection/testing  
 
Special engineering services and their costs must be itemized on Table 2. 
 
TxCDBG staff will evaluate these costs in accordance with guidelines available from the Consulting 
Engineers Council of Texas to determine if they are reasonable. 
 
Ttl. Act. $ (Total Activity Cost)

 

 – This field automatically displays the sum of the Construction$, 
Acquisition$, and the Eng./Arch.$ columns to obtain the total costs for each activity. Each activity cost 
and the associated total activity costs must be consistent with those shown on Table 1. General 
administration is not shown on Table 2. 

Operations and Maintenance – At the bottom of the form, identify and explain the projected operation 
and maintenance costs associated with each of the proposed activities. Figures for this field are based 



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

31 

on projections of operations and maintenance costs for five years after the completion of the project 
activity. Divide the projected five-year costs by 5 to arrive at a yearly operations and maintenance cost. 
 
Signature of Registered Engineer/Architect Responsible For Budget Justification and Seal

 

 – For public 
facilities projects, a professional engineer or architect licensed to practice in the State of Texas must 
complete this form. The engineer or architect’s signature and registration seal must be on the form. 

Please also provide the date the form is completed and the engineer or architect’s telephone number. If 
the professional seal is a pressure (non-ink) seal, please ensure that a penciled-over image of the seal is 
visible on the duplicate copy. 
 

National Program Objectives 
Indicate which National Program Objective the proposed project addresses. Additional data may be 
required depending on which NPO is selected. 
 
Regardless of which NPO was selected above, provide a justification of the method chosen to identify 
the beneficiaries of the proposed projects. Provide specific references to programs and income limits or 
the condition on which the limited clientele eligibility was based. The number of limited clientele 
beneficiaries must be substantiated through clientele lists or certified by the director of the facility or 
program. 
 
Additional questions will appear if the Slum and Blight NPO is selected: 
 
Boundaries

 

 – Describe the boundaries of the slum/blight area. Do not use this field to document the 
census tract/block group data for area benefit activities. 

Percentage Deteriorated Buildings/Qualified Properties

 

 – Enter the percentage of deteriorated 
buildings/properties in the area at the time it was designated a slum/blight area. 

Public Improvement/Type Condition

 

 – If the activity qualifies for TxCDBG assistance on the basis that 
public improvements throughout the area are in a general state of deterioration, enter a description of 
each type of improvement in the area and its condition at the time the area was designated as 
slum/blight. 

Slum/Blight Designation Year

 

 – Enter the year the area was designated as a slum/blight area. If the 
period during which such designations are valid has lapsed, the applicant entity must re-evaluate and re-
designate the area. 

 
 



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

32 

Anticipated Objectives and Outcomes 
Activity
 

 – Identify each activity proposed within the application.  

Choose one objective and one anticipated outcome for each activity in the application (excluding 
engineering and administration):   
 

x Create a suitable living environment. 

Objective 

x Provide decent affordable housing. 

x Create economic opportunities. 

 

x Availability / Accessibility 

Outcome 

x Affordability 

x Sustainability 
 
Only one set of objectives and outcomes is required for each activity. If multiple objectives and 
outcomes are provided for each activity, the responses listed first for each activity will be used for 
reporting purposes by TxCDBG.  
 
Anticipated Outcome Units

 

 – Provide the anticipated number of persons assisted for each of the 
questions pertaining to this project (a-c apply to services, d-f apply to infrastructure / public facility 
improvements - only answer those that apply). 

Additional Activity Information

x One-for-One Replacement:  requires that a grantee replace occupied and vacant units that are 
demolished or converted. 

 – Choose only those that apply.  

x Revolving Loan Fund:  established to make loans whereby principal repayments of loans are re-
paid into the fund and re-lent to other borrowers. 

x Brownfield Activity:  any activity designed to treat a piece of industrial or commercial property 
that is abandoned or underused and often environmentally contaminated, especially one 
considered as a potential site for redevelopment. 

x Special Assessment:  the recovery of the capital costs of a public improvement, such as streets, 
water or sewer lines, curbs, and gutters, through a fee or charge levied or filed as a lien against a 
parcel of real estate as a direct result of benefit derived from the installation of a public 
improvement, or on-time charge made as a condition of access to public improvement. 



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

33 

x Favored Activity:  certain activities specifically related to economic development.  

x Colonia:  Any identifiable unincorporated community that is determined to be a colonia on the 
basis of objective criteria, including lack of potable water supply, lack of adequate sewage 
systems, and lack of decent, safe, and sanitary housing; and was in existence as a colonia prior 
to the date of enactment of the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act (November 
28, 1990). 

x Presidentially Declared Disaster Area:  any area that is listed as an active disaster area on the 
Federal Emergency Management Agency website (www.fema.gov). 

x Historic Preservation Area:  any area that has been identified in accordance with the standards 
for the treatment of historic properties as set by the Secretary of the Interior. 

x Displacement:  a displaced person is any lower income family or individual that moves from real 
property, or moves his or her personal property from real property, permanently and 
involuntarily, as a direct result of the conversion of an occupied or vacant habitable 
low/moderate income dwelling unit, or the demolition of any dwelling unit, in connection with 
an assisted activity. 

x Float Funded:  process by which a state’s CDBG funds are already under contract to grant 
recipient, yet the state awards the same funds to another grant recipient providing that the 
state is repaid before the initial grant recipient needs the funds to meet their obligation(s) for 
their CDBG funded activities. 

Applicant Disclosure/Update Report 
Provisions at Subpart C of 24 CFR Part 4 require TxCDBG applicants to disclose the information 
requested in each part of this section: 

x Assistance from other government sources in connection with the TxCDBG project; 

x The financial interests of persons in the TxCDBG project; 

x The sources of funds contributed to the project; and 

x The uses for which the funds are to be utilized.  
 
TxCDBG will make all applicant disclosure reports available to the public for five years in the case of 
applications for competitive assistance, and for generally three years in the case of other applications. 
Update reports will be available along with the disclosure reports, but in no case for a period less than 
three years. All reports, both initial reports and update reports, will be made available in accordance 
with the Texas Open Records Act (Texas Civil Statutes, Art. 6252-17a). Failure to provide any required 
information may delay the processing of the application and may result in sanctions and penalties, 
including imposition of the administrative and civil penalties specified under 24 CFR Section 4.38. 
 
Part 1:  Applicant Recipient Information
 

 – Indicate whether this is an initial or update report. 



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

34 

Part 2:  Other Government Assistance Provided / Requested

 

 – Report any other government assistance 
involved in the proposed TxCDBG project or activity, including funds anticipated but not yet secured.  

"Other government assistance" is defined as any loan, grant, guarantee, insurance, payment, rebate, 
subsidy, credit, tax benefit or any other form of direct or indirect assistance from the Federal 
government, a State (other than the TxCDBG assistance requested in the application), or a unit of 
general local government, or any agency or instrumentality thereof, that is available, or is expected to 
be made available with respect to the project or activities for which TxCDBG assistance is sought. For 
purposes of this definition, other government assistance is expected if it is reasonable to anticipate that 
the assistance will be forthcoming based on an assessment of all the circumstances. 
 
Applicant disclosures must include all other government assistance involved with the TxCDBG 
assistance, as well as any other government assistance made available before the request, but with a 
continuing presence at the time of the TxCDBG application submission. Applicants do not need to report 
matching funds they contribute themselves. 
 
If the applicant has No Other Government Assistance to Disclose, place a mark in the appropriate box.  
 
Otherwise, 

x Provide the name of the government agency providing the assistance. If applicable, include at 
least one organizational level below the agency name. For example:  U.S. Department of 
Commerce, Economic Development Administration; Texas Department of Housing and 
Community Affairs, or HOME. 

x Enter the address, city, state, and zip code of the government agency making the assistance 
available. 

x Enter the program name and any relevant identifying numbers, or other means of identification, 
for the other government assistance. 

x State the type of other government assistance (e.g., applicant contribution, loan, grant, loan 
insurance). 

x Enter the dollar amount of the other government assistance that is or is expected to be made 
available with respect to the project of activities for which TxCDBG assistance is sought 
(applicants) or has been provided (recipients). 

 
Part 3:  Interested Parties – Applicants must provide information on anyone with financial interest in the 
proposed project exceeding $50,000 or 10 percent of the requested amount (whichever is lower). This 
includes developers, contractors, or consultants involved in the application for TxCDBG assistance or in 
the planning, development, or implementation of the project or activity. A “financial interest" is any 
financial involvement in the project or activity, including (but not limited to) situations in which an 
individual or entity has an equity interest in the project or activity, shares in any profit on resale or any 



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

35 

distribution of surplus cash or other assets of the project or activity, or receives compensation for any 
goods or services provided in connection with the project or activity. Residence in housing for which 
assistance is sought is not considered a covered financial interest.  
 
If the applicant has No Persons with a Reportable Financial Interest to Disclose, select the appropriate 
box and proceed to Part 4.  Enter the full names and addresses of all persons referred to in paragraph 1 
or 2 of this part. If the person is an entity, the listing must include the full name of each officer, director, 
and principal stockholder. Enter the type of participation in the project or activity for each person listed 
(e.g., contractor, consultant, planner, or investor). Enter the financial interest in the project or activity 
for each person listed both as a dollar amount and as a percentage of the amount of TxCDBG funds 
involved. 
 
Part 4:  Report on Expected Sources and Uses of Funds

 

 – The applicant disclosure report must specify all 
expected sources of funds from TxCDBG and from any other source that is or will be available for the 
proposed project or activity. Non-TxCDBG sources typically include the applicant's local contribution, 
other government assistance referred to in Part 2, equity, and contributions from foundations and 
private individuals. The report must also specify all expected use(s) of the funds. All sources and uses of 
funds must be included if they can be reasonably expected to be available for the proposed project. 

If any of the source/use information required by this report has been provided elsewhere in the 
application, refer to the application form and location rather than repeating the responses here.  
 
For the source of funds, indicate that the information can be found on the Cover Sheet, 424 Form, Table 
1, the Local Resolution, and Letters of Commitment. 
 
Otherwise, each reportable source of funds must indicate: 

x The name and address, city, state, and zip code of the individual or entity providing the 
assistance. If applicable, include at least one organizational level below the agency name. For 
example, U.S. Department of Transportation, U.S. Coast Guard; Department of Safety, Highway 
Patrol; 

x the program name, and any relevant identifying numbers or other means of identification for 
the assistance; and 

x the type of assistance (e.g., applicant contribution, loan, grant, loan insurance). 
   

Additional disclosures apply to update reports. During the period in which a TxCDBG application is 
pending, the applicant must make the following additional disclosures: 

1. Any information that should have been disclosed in connection with the application, but was 
omitted.  



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

36 

2. Any information that would have been subject to disclosure in connection with the application 
but that arose at a later time, including information concerning an interested party that now 
meets the applicable disclosure threshold referred to in PART 2 above.  

3. Any changes in previously disclosed Other Government Assistance that exceeds the previously 
disclosed amount.  

4. For changes in previously disclosed financial interests, any change in the amount of the financial 
interest of a person that exceeds the amount of the previously disclosed interests by $50,000 or 
by 10 percent of such interests (whichever is lower).  

5. For changes to previously disclosed sources of funds, any change in a source of funds that 
exceeds the lower of:  

a. The amount previously disclosed for that source of funds by $250,000 or by 10 percent of 
the amount previously disclosed for that source, whichever is lower; or  

b. The amount previously disclosed for all sources of funds by $250,000 or by 10 percent of the 
amount previously disclosed for all sources of funds, whichever is lower.  

6. For changes to previously disclosed uses of funds, any change in a use of funds that exceeds the 
lower of:  

a. The amount previously disclosed for that use of funds by $250,000 or by 10 percent of the 
amount previously disclosed for that use, whichever is lower; or  

b. The amount previously disclosed for all uses of funds by $250,000 or by 10 percent of the 
amount previously disclosed for all uses of funds, whichever is lower. 

Attachments 
Resolutions 
The application must be submitted with a resolution from the local governing body (i.e. County 
Commissioners Court) authorizing the submission of that application. The governing body must 
adopt/pass the resolution before the application submission and after the application public hearing. 
Failure to comply with these resolution requirements may result in disqualification of the application. 
 
This resolution must, at a minimum: 

1. Authorize the submission of an application for funding under the Texas Community 
Development Block Grant Program. 

2. Designate the Disaster Relief Fund as the fund category under which the application is to be 
considered. 

3. Designate the activities addressed in the application. 

4. Designate dollar amount being requested. 



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

37 

5. Designate a person (e.g., County Judge, County Commissioner) who will be authorized to 
execute documents in conjunction with the application. 

6. Commit to the provision of resources by source and use (if applicable) in support of the 
proposed project activities, including the specific source (e.g., General Fund, Water/Sewer Fund, 
General Obligation Bonds) and use of those resources.  

 
In a multi-jurisdiction application, a cooperation agreement must also be included and signed by all 
participating local governments, and must state which participant will serve as the lead administrative 
entity if the project is funded. Additionally, each locality participating in a multi-jurisdiction application 
must submit a resolution as outlined above. 
 
 

A sample resolution is provided on the following page. 
  



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

38 

Sample Resolution 
A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSIONER’S COURT OF (XYZ) COUNTY, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE 
SUBMISSION OF A TEXAS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM (TxCDBG) 
APPLICATION TO THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE FOR THE (DISASTER RELIEF FUND ); AND 
AUTHORIZING (THE COUNTY JUDGE)

 

 TO ACT AS THE COUNTY'S EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE IN ALL MATTERS PERTAINING TO THE COUNTY'S PARTICIPATION IN THE TxCDBG 
PROGRAM. 

WHEREAS, the Commissioner’s Court of (XYZ

 

) County desires to develop a viable community, including 
decent housing and a suitable living environment and expanding economic opportunities, principally for 
persons of low/moderate income; and  

WHEREAS, certain conditions exist that represent a threat to the public health and safety; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of (XYZ

 

) County to apply for funding under the Texas 
Community Development Block Grant Program; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSIONER’S COURT OF (XYZ
1. That a Texas Community Development Block Grant Program application for the 

) COUNTY, TEXAS:  
(DISASTER 

RELIEF FUND )

2. That the County's application be placed in competition for funding under the (

 is hereby authorized to be filed on behalf of the County with the Texas 
Department of Agriculture. 

DISASTER RELIEF 
FUND)

3. That the application be for (
. 

$350,000.00) of grant funds to provide (DEBRIS CLEARANCE 
ASSISTANCE)

4. That the Commissioner’s Court directs and designates (
. 

the County Judge)

5. That it further be stated that (

 as the County's Chief 
Executive Officer and Authorized Representative to act in all matters in connection with this 
application and the County's participation in the Texas Community Development Block Grant 
Program. 

XYZ) County is committing ($25,000.00) from its (General Fund) as 
a cash contribution toward the administration activities of this (DISASTER RELIEF)

 
 project. 

Passed and approved this (     ) day of (         ). 
 
John Doe, County Judge 
(XYZ

 
) County, Texas 

Mary Smith, County Clerk 
(XYZ
 

) County, Texas 

  



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

39 

Published Notices of Public Hearing and Application Activities 
Prior to the preparation and submission of an application for TxCDBG funds, each applicant must hold 
one public hearing and publish a notice that describes the application activities and the availability of 
the application(s) for public review. 
 
The public hearing gives citizens information about the Texas Community Development Block Grant 
Program, eligible program activities, opportunity to participate in the development of the applicant's 
community development and housing needs, and opportunity to participate in the development of 
TxCDBG applications. 
 
The public notice concerning the activities and activity locations that are included in TxCDBG 
applications gives citizens information on proposed uses for the funds and an opportunity to review and 
comment on the application(s) prior to submission. 
 
Other requirements that must be followed include:   

x Public notices should be prominently posted in public buildings and distributed to local Public 
Housing Authorities and other interested community service providers. 

x Persons with disabilities must be able to attend the hearing and an applicant must make 
arrangements for individuals who require auxiliary aids or services, if contacted at least two 
days prior to the hearing. 

x Local organizations that provide services or housing for low to moderate income persons, 
including but not limited to, the local Public Housing Authority, the local Health and Human 
Services office, and the local Mental Health and Mental Retardation office, must receive written 
notification concerning the date, time, location and topics to be covered at the public hearing. 

 
The written notification sent to local service providers for the public hearing must include the date, 
time, location and topics to be considered at the public hearing (a copy of the notice to be published for 
the public hearing will suffice if the notice includes all of the required information). An applicant should 
send this notification to service providers serving the jurisdiction’s residents. If a local office is located in 
the community, then the notification should be sent to that office. If a local office is not located in the 
community, then the notification should be sent to the local or regional office location that serves the 
jurisdiction’s residents. 
 
To show that proper notice of the public hearing and application activities was given to citizens, each 
applicant, including participating jurisdictions in a multi-jurisdiction application, must submit with the 
TxCDBG application: 

x A copy of the actual published public hearing notice (full page of the newspaper with publication 
title and date or publisher's affidavit and a copy of the notice) for the required public hearing. 
The notice must conform to the requirements of the Citizen Participation Plan including specifics 
such as the date, time, location of the hearing and the topics to be discussed. 

Papa Quique

Papa Quique



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

40 

x The actual published notice of the application(s) activities and availability of the application(s) 
for public review (full page of the newspaper with publication title and date or publisher's 
affidavit and a copy of the notice). The notice must conform to the requirements of the Citizen 
Participation Plan including the timing of the published noticed and the information included in 
the notice. 

x A listing of the local service providers that were sent the written notification of the public 
hearing. Copies of the written notifications must be kept by the applicant and will be reviewed 
by TxCDBG staff during site visits. The written notification must conform to the requirements of 
the Citizen Participation Plan including specifying the date, time, location of the hearing and the 
topics to be discussed. 

 
Waiting until a few days before the application deadline to go to the newspaper for the publisher's 
affidavit is not recommended. At that point, it could be too late to address a public hearing problem. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

41 

Sample Public Notices 

Published on (
Sample Public Hearing Notice  

January 1, 2012)
 

: 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
(XYZ)

TEXAS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM 
 COUNTY 

 
(XYZ) County will hold a public hearing at 7:00 p.m. on January 15, 2012, at (XYZ) County Courthouse in 
regard to the submission of an application to the Texas Department of Agriculture for a Texas 
Community Development Block Grant Program (TxCDBG) grant. The purpose of this meeting is to allow 
citizens an opportunity to discuss the citizen participation plan, the development of local housing and 
community development needs, the amount of TxCDBG funding available, all eligible TxCDBG activities, 
and the use of past TxCDBG funds. The County encourages citizens to participate in the development of 
this TxCDBG application and to make their views known at this public hearing. Citizens unable to attend 
this meeting may submit their views and proposals to (John Doe

 

), County Judge at the County 
Courthouse. Persons with disabilities that wish to attend this meeting should contact the County 
Courthouse to arrange for assistance. Individuals who require auxiliary aids or services for this meeting 
should contact the County Courthouse at least two days before the meeting so that appropriate 
arrangements can be made. 

Published at least five (5) days prior to submitting the application(s): 
Sample Application Activities Notices  

 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
(XYZ

TEXAS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM 
) COUNTY 

 
(XYZ) County is giving notice of the county’s intent to submit Texas Community Development Block 
Grant Program grant applications for a (Disaster Relief Fund) grant request of ($350,000) for (the 
installation of a sewer system) in the (Green Valley area). The applications are available for review at the 
(XYZ

 

) County Courthouse during regular business hours. 

Papa Quique



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

42 

Documentation 
Project Maps 
Each application for TxCDBG funding must be accompanied by a project map, or maps, that clearly show 
the following information: 

x The boundaries of the applicant’s jurisdiction 

x The locations of all proposed project activities 
 
The maps must show: 

x the boundaries of the applicant jurisdiction 

x the locations of the target area(s) within the jurisdiction 

x the locations of all proposed project activities within the target areas (e.g., sewer/water lines, 
lift stations, street pavement, water storage tanks, water wells, wastewater treatment plants 
etc.) 

 
Applicants using HUD-2000 Census data to document project beneficiaries must provide maps that 
clearly show:   

x all of the Census geographic areas (e.g., census tracts, block numbering areas, block groups) 
within the applicant's jurisdiction where census data is used to document project beneficiaries 
and locations of the project activities on the same census maps 

x the census tract numbers, block numbering area numbers, and block group numbers must be 
legible on these census maps 

 
If project beneficiaries are determined on the basis of area benefit, the project area or service area 
boundaries must also be delineated on the map. 
 
(Note: Maps must be reproducible. Care should be taken in copying maps so that project activities that 
may have been designated by a colored mark are still identifiable.) 
 
Letters of Commitment 
Cities and counties can use other resources in support of TxCDBG funded activities in several ways. This 
support can include: 

x In-kind Services 

x Force Account Labor and Equipment (salaries/equipment for project construction) 

x Local Volunteer Labor (salaries/hourly wages earned, but not paid) 

x City or County Owned Land (to be specifically used or donated to the project) 

x City or County Owned Materials (either construction or administration materials) 

Papa Quique



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

43 

x Force Account Administration (administrative salaries) 

x Applicant General Revenue Funds 

x Local, State, or Federal Funds. 

x Planning applications need only document cash match. 
 
While other resources are strongly encouraged, the commitments for these matching funds must be 
fully documented as to source, type, use, and minimum dollar amount before they can be considered in 
the scoring of an application. 
 
Local government resource commitments must be made in the form of a resolution from the City 
Council or County Commissioners Court. This resolution must, at a minimum, indicate the type of 
resource (e.g., land, labor, materials, money, etc.) and the source, a minimum dollar value to be 
provided, and for what purpose(s) this resource will be used. Please note here that local match can only 
be counted for expenditures that would not occur (with the exception of local funds expended for 
consultant engineering and administrative services) if the proposed application is not funded. 
 
Resource commitments provided by other local entities (e.g., public housing authority, special utility 
districts, private financial institutions or other similar sources leveraging loan funds with a local housing 
rehabilitation program or other TxCDBG-eligible activity) must be documented in a letter signed by a 
person authorized by that entity to make such a commitment. This letter should identify the resource to 
be provided, a minimum dollar value to be provided, and for what purpose this resource will be used. 
Applicants who are unsure about the eligibility of a commitment from other local entities should contact 
TxCDBG staff. 
 
Commitments for other State or Federal funds (e.g., Texas Water Development Board, Rural Utility 
Service) must be supported by a grant/loan offer, contract award letter, etc., signed by a person 
authorized to make such a commitment for that agency for an activity directly related to activities 
included in the TxCDBG funding request. This evidence must include identification of the resource, a 
minimum dollar value, and the purpose for which this resource will be used. Also, these resources 
cannot have been expended before the application is submitted. 
 
All resources committed in an application and considered in the scoring of that application must

 

 be 
provided in the event that the project is selected for funding. If these resources are not made available, 
the locality may be subject to the sanctions set forth in the “False Information on Applications” section 
of this guide.  

Additionally, the use of other funds (e.g., federal, state, or local), in conjunction with TxCDBG funds, 
generally triggers a series of compliance requirements on those other funds that might not be applicable 
if those funds were to be used independently as a separate project. These requirements include but are 



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

44 

not limited to environmental review, labor standards, real property acquisition (including easements), 
prohibition of special assessments, and financial management procedures. 
 
Additional Attachments 

x Each applicant using the HUD-2000 Census-based data to justify the 51% low and moderate 
income benefit must submit information which documents the applicant's low and moderate 
income benefit percentage. 

o If HUD-2000 Census-based Data was used to document beneficiaries and income category 
data, a copy of the source data must be provided. 

o If a TxCDBG survey was used to document beneficiaries and income category data, all 
supporting documentation must be provided in accordance with the requirements specified 
within the TxCDBG Survey Methodology Manual.  

x Documentation of Slum or Blighted Area 

o Map of officially designated slum or blighted area. 

o A statement of conditions that qualifies a target area as a slum or blighted area. 

o Explanation of how planning activities would eliminate slum or blighted areas when 
implementation of plan occurs. 

x Documentation of Imminent Threat (For proposed activities that address the national program 
objective of addressing other urgent needs.) 

o An applicant that seeks to qualify an application under the national objective of addressing 
other community development needs having a particular urgency must include, as an 
attachment, a letter from the Texas Department of Health indicating that the need 
addressed in the application represents a "serious and immediate threat to the health and 
safety of residents of the jurisdiction." 

o The condition must be of recent origin that is generally considered as a situation that has 
developed or become critical within 18 months of the certification by the Texas Department 
of Health or Texas Commission on Environmental Quality. 

x TxCDBG survey forms (survey questionnaires, survey tabulation form(s), and the survey 
locations form(s). 

  

Papa Quique

Papa Quique



Te
xa

s D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f A
gr

ic
ul

tu
re

 
DR

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

G
ui

de
 

45
 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

:  
Ex

am
pl

es
 o

f C
om

pl
et

ed
 F

or
m

s*
 

 

 

Ta
bl

e 
1 

* 
 P

le
as

e 
no

te
 e

xa
m

pl
es

 o
f c

om
pl

et
ed

 fo
rm

s a
re

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 p

ro
pe

r f
or

m
at

, a
nd

 d
o 

no
t 

re
pr

es
en

t a
ct

ua
l p

ro
je

ct
s,

 su
bm

itt
ed

 fu
nd

in
g 

re
qu

es
ts

, o
r m

at
er

ia
l/s

er
vi

ce
 c

os
ts

. 



Te
xa

s D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f A
gr

ic
ul

tu
re

 
DR

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

G
ui

de
 

46
 

 
 



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

47 

 



Texas Department of Agriculture 
DR Application Guide 

48 

 

Table 2  





 
 

DATE: 08/25 

TO: Council 

 

FROM: Mayor Jesus Ruiz 

 

SUBJECT: Discussion and action on using Council discretionary funds to purchase 

books for the City of Socorro 

 

 

SUMMARY 

 

Council set aside $1,000 for each Council member this FY. Based on the last finance 

report that we received, we have spent less than $1,500 of the total $6,000. I 

recommend that we use the remaining balance to purchase books for use in the City 

of Socorro. We currently do not have a library and using the money to buy books 

would be of great help for our constituents. We could purchase the books through 

The Bookery and help a local business.   

 

 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

n/a 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE 

 

See above 

 

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 

Less than $5,000 to avoid going for a bid 

 

 

Jesus Ruiz 
Mayor 

 

Rene Rodriguez 
At Large 

 

Sergio Cox 
District 1 

 

Gloria M. Rodríguez 
District 2 

 

Victor Perez  
District 3 – Mayor Pro Tem 

 

Joseph E. Bowling 
District 4 

 

Willie Norfleet, Jr.  
City Manager 

 

City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 33



 

ALTERNATIVE 

 

Not approve the purchase 

 

 

COUNCIL MEMBER RECOMMENDATION 

 

Approve using funds from our discretionary funds to buy books from The Bookery 

for the City of Socorro.  

 



 
 

DATE: 08/25 

TO: Council 

 

FROM: Mayor Jesus Ruiz 

 

SUBJECT: Discussion and action on reducing the amount of discretionary funds 

each Council member is allocated from $1000 to $500 and allocating $3,000 for the 

purchase of books throughout the year.  

 

 

SUMMARY 

 

Discretionary funds are no longer utilized as they once were. Council has not used 

them and this year less than $1500 of the allocated $6000 have been used. I propose 

that we cut that amount in half and use the $3000 we would be saving to buy books. 

Our community does not have a library and the City of El Paso charges non citizens 

$50 a year to have a library card in their library. By using the money to buy books, 

we can start having our books and look forward to build a library one day.    

 

 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

n/a 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE 

 

See above 

 

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 

Less than $3,000 

 

Jesus Ruiz 
Mayor 

 

Rene Rodriguez 
At Large 

 

Sergio Cox 
District 1 

 

Gloria M. Rodríguez 
District 2 

 

Victor Perez  
District 3 – Mayor Pro Tem 

 

Joseph E. Bowling 
District 4 

 

Willie Norfleet, Jr.  
City Manager 

 

City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 34



 

 

ALTERNATIVE 

 

Leave the discretionary funds as they are now 

 

 

COUNCIL MEMBER RECOMMENDATION 

 

Approve decreasing the amount of discretionary funds from $1000 per Council 

member to $500 per Council member and using the $3000 to purchase books.   

 



 
 

DATE: 08/25 

TO: Council 

 

FROM: Mayor Jesus Ruiz 

 

SUBJECT: Discussion and action on ending Movies Under the Stars this year  

 

 

SUMMARY 

 

Movies Under the Stars was started this year. So far, 4 movies have been shown. I 

have attended all four movies and it has been a good event for the community. 

However, the turnout has slowly been declining due to various factors. Mosquitoes, 

the muddy condition of Bulldog Championship Park, and the time of year have 

contributed to the decline in attendance. Ms. Diaz had two movies scheduled for 

September, the 3rd and 4th Saturdays of the month. However, we will be hosting the 

Chili War Festival on the 20th (3rd Saturday) and the bazaar at La Purisima will be 

held on the 27th (the 4th Saturday). In order to avoid clashing with these events, I 

propose that we end MUTS for this year.   

 

 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

n/a 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE 

 

See above 

 

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 

Saving of the amount the movie costs and the manpower.  

Jesus Ruiz 
Mayor 

 

Rene Rodriguez 
At Large 

 

Sergio Cox 
District 1 

 

Gloria M. Rodríguez 
District 2 

 

Victor Perez  
District 3 – Mayor Pro Tem 

 

Joseph E. Bowling 
District 4 

 

Willie Norfleet, Jr.  
City Manager 

 

City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 35



 

 

 

ALTERNATIVE 

 

Continue with MUTS this year 

 

 

COUNCIL MEMBER RECOMMENDATION 

 

End MUTS this year and continue it again next year 

 



 
 

DATE: 08/25 

TO: Council 

 

FROM: Mayor Jesus Ruiz 

 

SUBJECT: Update on recycle bin cost analysis  

 

 

SUMMARY 

 

Council approved a cost analysis to be done on purchasing recycling bins for all 

parks in the City of Socorro. An update is being requested by CM Willie Norfleet.    

 

 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

n/a 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE 

 

See above 

 

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 

None 

 

 

 

ALTERNATIVE 

 

none 

 

Jesus Ruiz 
Mayor 

 

Rene Rodriguez 
At Large 

 

Sergio Cox 
District 1 

 

Gloria M. Rodríguez 
District 2 

 

Victor Perez  
District 3 – Mayor Pro Tem 

 

Joseph E. Bowling 
District 4 

 

Willie Norfleet, Jr.  
City Manager 

 

City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 36









 
 

DATE:  August 14, 2014 

 

TO: Mayor and Council   

 

FROM: Rene Rodriguez, At Large City Representative 

 

SUBJECT: Defund Positions 

 

SUMMARY 

 

Discussion and action to defund assistant city clerk and human resources assistant 

positions.  

 

BACKGROUND 

 

We have personnel that can do the work. 

 

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE 

 

The personnel that we have are capable to doing the work they are assigned. No longer 

need assistance.  

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 

Will reduce budget 45,000 

 

Account Code (GF/GL/Dept):  00013-05527 and 00013-5711 

 

Funding Source: General Fund 

 

Amount:  

      

Quotes (Name/Commodity/Price) 

 

Co-op Agreement (Name/Contract#) 

 

 

 

Jesus Ruiz 
Mayor 

 

Rene Rodriguez 
At Large 

 

Sergio Cox 
District 1 

 

Gloria M. Rodríguez 
District 2 

 

Victor Perez  
District 3 – Mayor Pro Tem 

 

Joseph E. Bowling 
District 4 

 

Willie Norfleet, Jr.  
City Manager 

 

City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 38



 

ALTERNATIVE 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

 

 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATION 

 

1. City Manager  ___________________ Date_________________ 

 

2. CFO  ____  Date: ________________ 

 

3. Attorney ________________________ Date _______________________ 



 
 

DATE:  August 14, 2014 

 

TO: Mayor and Council   

 

FROM: Rene Rodriguez, At Large City Representative 

 

SUBJECT: Grant Writer 

 

SUMMARY 

 

Discussion and action regarding grant writer.  

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The grant writer contract should be reviewed. If it is in the best interest of the city, 

perhaps the positons should be in-house. 

 

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE 

 

The current grant writer has been with the city for a few years now. We need to evaluate 

if the current grant writer has given the city the best services.  

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 

Will have a cost savings of about $20,000  

 

Account Code (GF/GL/Dept):  00013-05527 and 00013-5711 

 

Funding Source: General Fund 

 

Amount:  $35,000- $45,000 

      

Quotes (Name/Commodity/Price) 

 

Co-op Agreement (Name/Contract#) 

 

 

 

Jesus Ruiz 
Mayor 

 

Rene Rodriguez 
At Large 

 

Sergio Cox 
District 1 

 

Gloria M. Rodríguez 
District 2 

 

Victor Perez  
District 3 – Mayor Pro Tem 

 

Joseph E. Bowling 
District 4 

 

Willie Norfleet, Jr.  
City Manager 

 

City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 39



 

ALTERNATIVE 

 

 

We can stay with contract as is! 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

 

 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATION 

 

1. City Manager  ___________________ Date_________________ 

 

2. CFO  ____  Date: ________________ 

 

3. Attorney ________________________ Date _______________________ 



 
 

DATE:  August 14, 2014 

 

TO: Mayor and Council   

 

FROM: Rene Rodriguez, At Large City Representative 

 

SUBJECT: Parks and Public Works Department 

 

SUMMARY 

 

Discussion and action to combine Parks Department with Public Works Department. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

Combining the departments will benefit our residents and provide better quality services.  

 

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE 

 

Due to the budget, we need to make changes and by combining the departments we will 

have better control. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 

 

Account Code (GF/GL/Dept):  00013-05527 and 00013-5711 

 

Funding Source: General Fund 

 

Amount:   

    

Quotes (Name/Commodity/Price) 

 

Co-op Agreement (Name/Contract#) 

 

 

 

 

ALTERNATIVE 

Jesus Ruiz 
Mayor 

 

Rene Rodriguez 
At Large 

 

Sergio Cox 
District 1 

 

Gloria M. Rodríguez 
District 2 

 

Victor Perez  
District 3 – Mayor Pro Tem 

 

Joseph E. Bowling 
District 4 

 

Willie Norfleet, Jr.  
City Manager 

 

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 40



 

 

Leave as is. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

 

 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATION 

 

1. City Manager  ___________________ Date_________________ 

 

2. CFO  ____  Date: ________________ 

 

3. Attorney ________________________ Date _______________________ 



 
 

DATE:  August 14, 2014 

 

TO: Mayor and Council   

 

FROM: Rene Rodriguez, At Large City Representative 

 

SUBJECT: Fray Olguin Street 

 

SUMMARY 

 

Discussion and action regarding Fray Olguin Street.  

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The street needs sewage. One resident will not give the city the right-of-way. 

 

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE 

 

We need to meet with Lower Valley Water District. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 

 

Account Code (GF/GL/Dept):  00013-05527 and 00013-5711 

 

Funding Source: General Fund 

 

Amount:  $90,000 

    

Quotes (Name/Commodity/Price) 

 

Co-op Agreement (Name/Contract#) 

 

 

 

 

ALTERNATIVE 

 

Jesus Ruiz 
Mayor 

 

Rene Rodriguez 
At Large 

 

Sergio Cox 
District 1 

 

Gloria M. Rodríguez 
District 2 

 

Victor Perez  
District 3 – Mayor Pro Tem 

 

Joseph E. Bowling 
District 4 

 

Willie Norfleet, Jr.  
City Manager 

 

City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 41



 

There are no other alternatives  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

 

 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATION 

 

1. City Manager  ___________________ Date_________________ 

 

2. CFO  ____  Date: ________________ 

 

3. Attorney ________________________ Date _______________________ 



 
 

DATE:  August 14, 2014 

 

TO: Mayor and Council   

 

FROM: Rene Rodriguez, At Large City Representative 

 

SUBJECT: Tires 

 

SUMMARY 

 

Discussion and action regarding tires 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

Due to the rains, a person in Socorro has contracted the West Nile Virus.  This is a health 

concern and we need to make sure all tire shops cover their tires to prevent mosquitoes.  

 

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE 

 

The shops need to place tarps on the tires or store the tires. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 

To the shops: $800.00 

 

Account Code (GF/GL/Dept):  00013-05527 and 00013-5711 

 

Funding Source: General Fund 

 

Amount:   

    

Quotes (Name/Commodity/Price) 

 

Co-op Agreement (Name/Contract#) 

 

 

 

 

Jesus Ruiz 
Mayor 

 

Rene Rodriguez 
At Large 

 

Sergio Cox 
District 1 

 

Gloria M. Rodríguez 
District 2 

 

Victor Perez  
District 3 – Mayor Pro Tem 

 

Joseph E. Bowling 
District 4 

 

Willie Norfleet, Jr.  
City Manager 

 

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 42



ALTERNATIVE 

 

 

We could hold off on it 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

 

 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATION 

 

1. City Manager  ___________________ Date_________________ 

 

2. CFO  ____  Date: ________________ 

 

3. Attorney ________________________ Date _______________________ 



 
 

DATE:  August 14, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Council   
 
FROM: Rene Rodriguez, At Large City Representative 
 
SUBJECT: Stop Signs 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Discussion and action regarding stop signs 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Even though we have placed several stops signs throughout the city, residents still want 
more.  
 
STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE 
 
Residents are asking for more stop signs. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
$10,000 will finish the year. The impact will reduce accidents as well.  
 
Account Code (GF/GL/Dept):  00013-05527 and 00013-5711 
 
Funding Source: General Fund 
 
Amount:   
    
Quotes (Name/Commodity/Price) 
 
Co-op Agreement (Name/Contract#) 
 
 
 
 

Jesus Ruiz 
Mayor 

 
Rene Rodriguez 

At Large 
 

Sergio Cox 
District 1 

 

Gloria M. Rodríguez 
District 2 

 
Victor Perez  

District 3 – Mayor Pro Tem 
 

Joseph E. Bowling 
District 4 

 
Willie Norfleet, Jr.  

City Manager 
 

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text

City Manager
Typewritten Text
Item 43



ALTERNATIVE 
 
 
We could hold off on it for next year 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATION 
 

1. City Manager  ___________________ Date_________________ 
 

2. CFO  ____  Date: ________________ 
 
3. Attorney ________________________ Date _______________________ 


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



